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FARINGDON LEARNING TRUST 

TRUSTEES' REPORT 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2022 
  

The trustees present their annual report together with the accounts and auditor's report of the charitable company for the 
year 1 September 2021 to 31 August 2022. The annual report serves the purposes of both a trustees’ report, and a 
directors’ report and strategic report under company law. 

The academy trust operates 8 primary/secondary academies in Oxfordshire. 

  

[Academy School Capacity as listed in 
Funding Agreement 

Pupils on Roll (Oct 22 
census) 

  

Faringdon Community College 1550 (including 200 6* form) 1435 (1266 Y7-Y11 and 169 
6‘ form) 

  

Folly View Primary (Formally known as 
Faringdon Infant School) 

510 (420 4-11yrs and 90 nursery) 174 and 24 nursery 

  

The Elms Primary (formally known as 
Faringdon Junior School) 

450 (420 4-11yrs and 30 nursery) 405 and 16 nursery 

  

Buckland Church of England Primary 
School 

115 (105 4-11yrs and 10 nursery) 104 and 7 nursery 

  

John Blandy Primary School 315 1261 

  

Longcot & Fernham Church of England 
Primary School 

127 (119 4-11 yrs and 8 nursery) 138 and 5 nursery 

  

Shrivenham Church of England Primary 
School 

210 205 

  

Watchfield Primary School 446 (420 4-11yrs and 26 nursery) 347 and 27 nursery 

  

Total   3559 + 164 nursery   3069 + 79 nursery     

Structure, governance and management 

Constitution 

  
The academy trust is a company limited by guarantee and an exempt charity. The charitable company’s memorandum 
and articles of association are the primary governing documents of the academy trust. The trustees of Faringdon 
Learning Trust are also the directors of the charitable company for the purposes of company law. The charitable 
company operates as Faringdon Learning Trust. 

Details of the trustees who served during the year, and to the date these accounts are approved are included in the 
Reference and Administrative Details on page 1. 

Members’ liability 

Each member of the charitable company undertakes to contribute to the assets of the charitable company in the event of it 
being wound up while they are a member, or within one year after they cease to be a member, such amount as may be 
required, not exceeding £10, for the debts and liabilities contracted before they ceased to be a member. 

 



FARINGDON LEARNING TRUST 

TRUSTEES' REPORT (CONTINUED) 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2022 
  

Trustees’ indemnities 

There were no provisions required for third party indemnity. In accordance with normal commercial practice, the academy 
trust purchased insurance to protect trustees and officers from claims arising from negligent acts, errors or omissions 
occurring whilst on trust business. 

Method of recruitment and appointment or election of trustees 

During this reporting period, the board of trustees retained a structure of 12 appointments comprising: 

e 3-Trustees appointed by the Oxfordshire Diocese Board of Education. 
e 8— Trustees appointed by Members. 
e 1—CEO; ex-officio 
e an option of 2 - Co-opted Directors. 

Members may appoint up to 8 trustees, but the total number of trustees who are employees of the academy trust (including 
the Chief Executive Officer) must not exceed one third of the total number of trustees. 

The trustees may appoint up to two co-opted Directors. A ‘co-opted Director’ means a person who is appointed to be a 
trustee by being co-opted by trustees who have not themselves been so appointed. The trustees may not co-opt an 
employee of the company as a co-opted trustee if the number of trustees who are employed by the company (including the 
CEO) would thereby exceed one third of the total number of trustees. 

Trustees are appointed in accordance with the revised Articles of Association (see link below) which became applicable on 
conversion. When a new trustee is required the following process is followed: 

¢ Diocese appointed trustee — the Trust will liaise with the Oxfordshire Diocese Board of Education to seek suitable 
nominations. Whilst it remains a Diocese responsibility to appoint, in practice, this process will be collaborative to 
ensure that the new appointee has the appropriate skills and experience to discharge his/her responsibilities. 

e Member appointed trustee — in the first instance, the Trust will advertise via the newsletters of all 8 schools and 
through the 8 Trusts local governing bodies. Additionally, the Trust will approach Academy Ambassadors if we 
require a replacement trustee with specific professional skills that we are unable to recruit from the local 
communities. 

As a vacancy becomes available, the trustees review existing experience and thereafter seek to recruit a new appointee 
with the appropriate competency for the role. 

https://faringdonlearningtrust.org/wp-content/uploads/2020/06/articles-of-association.pdf 

 



FARINGDON LEARNING TRUST 

TRUSTEES' REPORT (CONTINUED) 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2022 
  

Policies and procedures adopted for the induction and training of trustees 

Faringdon Learning Trust continues to develop its in house Governor Services offer which has been developed to meet the 
needs of our multi academy trust. Recognition of the expertise and experience within the trust's executive leadership and 
across our governance structure has enabled us to strengthen our governance support and development offer. To ensure 
we retain an outward looking perspective the trust has continued to embrace and signpost external training opportunities 
which underpin or strengthen our internal offer. We have continued to invest in the development of good governance 
across the trust through an induction programme for trustees, chairs of local boards and school governors. The role of the 
Trust Secretary has continued to evolve to reflect changing needs across the trust. To ensure that the Trust remains 
current, we continue to procure membership of the National Governance Association which enables all trustees access to 
independent advice on all aspects of multi-academy trust governance. All Chairs and Clerks have access to The Key for 
School Governors which we continue to subscribe to. 

In June 2020 we started to use GovernorHub for all governance activity which will continue to strengthen and grow 
understanding of governance. 

The provision of an in-house clerking service for all of the Local Governing Bodies and Trust committees has provided the 
trust with the means to deliver a more consistent level of provision. All clerks are line-managed by the Trust Secretary and 
this helps ensure that we can deliver a coherent approach to governance, thereby ensuring effective discharging of 
delegated functions as well as an improved means of standardising and aligning policies and procedures where 
appropriate. 

New Trustee Resources and Checklist is used for all new Trustees joining the board, and is completed in conjunction with 
the Chair of Trustees. 

The Trust Secretary holds the master record of Company policies, acts as Clerk to the Trustees and maintains the Trust 
Scheme of Delegation. Our approach to governance continues to be recognised as initiative. 

 



FARINGDON LEARNING TRUST 

TRUSTEES' REPORT (CONTINUED) 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2022 
  

Organisational structure 

The trust has defined the responsibilities of each person involved in the administration of academy finances to avoid the 
duplication or omission of functions and to provide a framework of accountability for governors and staff. The financial 
reporting structure is illustrated below: 

The Board of Trustees 

The Board of Trustees has overall responsibility for the administration of the trust’s finances. The main responsibilities of 
the Board of Trustees are prescribed in the Master Funding Agreement and respective Supplemental Funding Agreements 
between the Trust and the DfE and in the Trust’s Scheme of Delegation. The main responsibilities include: 

« Ensuring that the grant from the DfE is used only for the purposes intended. 
¢ Approval of the annual budget for each school. 
e Appointment of the Accounting Officer. 
¢ Appointment of the Chief Financial Officer, in conjunction with the Accounting Officer. 

The Board of Trustees has wide discretion over its use of the academy's funds, and is ultimately responsible for the proper 
stewardship of those funds and for ensuring economy, efficiency and effectiveness in their use — the three key elements 
of value for money. It must also ensure that it uses its discretion reasonably, and takes into account any and all relevant 
guidance on accountability or propriety. 

The Faringdon Learning Trust's Resources Committee 

The Trust Resources Committee is a committee of the Board of Trustees. The Committee meets at least once per term, but 
more frequent meetings are arranged as necessary. The main responsibilities of the Resources Committee are detailed in 
written terms of reference which have been authorised by the Board of Trustees and they include: 

e Providing guidance and direction for the annual budget process. 
« Agreeing a mechanism for accounting for central trust services and setting the annual contribution from each 

school. 
¢ The review and authorisation of the annual budget of each school and any subsequent revised budgets submitted 

in January of each school year. 
¢ The regular monitoring of actual expenditure and income against budget. 
¢ Ensuring the annual accounts are produced in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006 and 

the DfE guidance issued to academies. 
¢ Authorising the award of contracts and leases over £25,000 per year. 
« Authorising changes to the central academy personnel establishment. 
¢ Reviewing the reports of the Audit Committee on the effectiveness of the financial procedures and controls. These 

reports must also be reported to the full Board of Trustees meeting. 

The Committee is directly supported by the finance lead from each local governing body. Local Governing Bodies are 
responsible for their delegated budgets and, supported by the trust central finance team, they conduct regular monitoring 
of actual expenditure and income against school budgets. An annual meeting of all LGB Finance Leads and the Chair of 
the Resources Committee took place in April 2021, to set out clear expectations around the annual budget setting process, 
look at school benchmarking data as well as budget challenges and Trust wide finance efficiencies. 

 



FARINGDON LEARNING TRUST 

TRUSTEES' REPORT (CONTINUED) 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2022 
  

The Chief Executive Office — Accounting Officer 

Faringdon Learning Trust's Chief Executive Office is the appointed Trust Accounting Officer and has overall personal 
responsibility for: 

e Probity and regularity compliance. 
e Prudent and economical academy administration. 
e Keeping of proper academy accounts. 

e Ensuring value for money and avoiding waste and extravagance across the whole academy. 
e Efficient and effective use of available academy resources. 

Much of the responsibility is delegated to the Trust Chief Operational Officer to manage on a day-to-day basis. 

To secure effective reflection and evaluation of the trust and to enable the appropriate development of the trust's school 
improvement offer the CEO has worked on the development of a trust-based self-evaluation. With the Trust’s Director of 
Education, the school improvement offer available to our schools has also been revised to respond to the evolving and 

changing needs of the schools within the trust. 

To preserve an outward view of the ever-changing educational picture and secure benchmarking and learning 
opportunities our Chief Executive Officer, a qualified Ofsted Inspector, continues to provide school improvement support to 
schools in the region as does our Director of Education who is a National Leader in Education. 

The Chief Executive Officer with the Chair of the Board spearheaded a full review of the strategic vision for the trust to 
determine the key areas of development for our multi academy trust over the next 5 years. 

Additionally, within a framework that comprises the academy vision, strategic objectives and academy school improvement 
plan, approved by the Board of Trustees, each Head Teacher has responsibility for their individual School Development 

Plans including the setting of their school’s individual budget and financial activities. Individual school budgets are 
approved by their respective Local Governing Body and submitted to the Board of Trustees, via the Trust Resources 

Committee for approval annually or as required. 

The Chief Operational Officer (COO) — Chief Financial Officer (CFO) 

The COO also holds the position of CFO for the Trust, they work in close collaboration with the Accounting Officer through 
whom they are responsible to the Board of Trustees. The COO also has direct access to the Board of Trustees, the Trust 
Resources Committee and the Trust Independent Audit and Risk Committee. The main responsibilities of the COO are: 

e The day to day management of financial issues including the establishment and operation of a suitable accounting 
system. 

e The management of the academy financial position at a strategic and operational level within the framework for 
financial control determined by the Board of Trustees. 

=~ The maintenance of effective systems of internal control. ‘ 
= Ensuring that the annual accounts are properly presented andsadequately supported by the underlying books and 

records of the academy. 
« The preparation of monthly management accounts. 
e Ensuring forms and returns are sent to the Df€E in line with the timetable in the DfE guidance. 

Other Staff 

Other members of staff, primarily, the Trust Finance Manager, Finance Officers, Finance Assistants and budget holders at 
each school, will have some financial responsibilities and these are detailed in the Faringdon Learning Trust's Financial 
Regulations Manual (reviewed annually). All staff are responsible for the security of Trust property, for avoiding loss or 
damage, for ensuring economy and efficiency in the use of resources and for conformity with the requirements of the 

Trust's financial procedures. 

 



FARINGDON LEARNING TRUST 

TRUSTEES' REPORT (CONTINUED) 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2022 
  

Arrangements for setting pay and remuneration of key management personnel 

Faringdon Learning Trust agreed under TUPE to continue to operate within the School Teachers Terms and Conditions of 
Employment document and the terms and conditions of employment as set out in the National Joint Council for Local 
Government Services. Accordingly, all positions within trust are set within the groups relevant to the size of an individual 
establishment, the size of the trust as a whole or in the case of non-teaching posts to reflect the level and range of 
responsibilities a post holder is expected to discharge. 

When a post is established the grade and relevant salary ranges which will be applied is determined in accordance with 
those documents and as and when required are referred for evaluation to the Oxfordshire Multi Academy Trust Job 
Evaluation Moderation Panel. 

The appointment process for the Chief Executive Officer, Director of Education and Chief Operations Officer all adhered to 
the principles the trust has established. To enable a comprehensive review of Executive Leadership of the trust initially all 
appointments to these roles were made on an interim basis. A wide range of trust leadership structures were looked 
alongside a salary benchmarking exercise of similar posts within the education sector prior to approval of the new structure 
being given by the board. 

The trust continues to utilise a review period to validate the continued requirements for a post and re set the salary range 
for the post before post are advertised. Responsibility for this is split between the trust board and local governing bodies 

The Trust Resources Committee hold the delegated responsibility for reviewing and authorising the salary range which can 
be offered for most senior appointments across the trust and recommend salary ranges for the approval by the board in 
the case of all executive leadership positions and Headteacher and Deputy Headteacher positions within our schools. It is 
through this committee’s oversight that the Trust ensures consistency of practice and prevention of salary creep. 

As per the trust's pay policy all staff are subject to an annual performance management review based on the trusts 
appraisal policies, for teachers this links salary progression to performance. 

The Trust’s board through its directors and the Chief Executive Officer take an active role in the recruitment of all senior 
posts and the annual appraisal of all senior post holders. The outcome of all senior appointments and the annual appraisal 
process is reported to the Trust Resources Committee and when appropriate to the board. 

Trade union facility time 

Relevant union officials 

Number of employees who were relevant union officials during the 
relevant period - 

Full-time equivalent employee number - 

Percentage of time spent on facility time 

Percentage of time Number of employees 

0% = = - 

1%-50% - 

51%-99% - 

100% - 

Percentage of pay bill spent on facility time 

Total cost of facility time - 

Total pay bill - 

Percentage of the total pay bill spent on facilty time - 

Paid trade union activities 

Time spent on paid trade union activities as a percentage of total 
paid facility time hours - 

Related Parties and other Connected Charities and Organisations 

The Trust is not part of a wider network such as a soft federation. For further details of related parties and transactions 
during the year, see notes 11 and 28 of the financial statements. 
  

-Q9-



FARINGDON LEARNING TRUST 

TRUSTEES' REPORT (CONTINUED) 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2022 
  

Engagement with employees 
The trust takes pride in representing and reflecting the aspirations of the local community. FLT prides itself on being an 
equal opportunities employer and is committed to providing equality and social inclusion for all. The trust is pleased to 
receive applications for employment from disabled people and ensures that such applications receive a positive 
consideration. The trust operates a policy whose aim is to ensure that unlawful or otherwise unjustifiable discrimination 
does not take place in any aspect of our operations, especially in the recruitment, training, career development and 
promotion opportunities for all staff. The Trust is sensitive to the considerable investment of time and energy that staff 
make into the education of pupils and the need for staff to manage this along with a work life balance for themselves and 
their families, it continues to look at ways to support all staff in addressing any strain including availability of an employee 
assist programme of support for all staff. 

The trust engages through various mediums with all its staff throughout the year through regular bulletins, briefings, 
workshops and training. On a more formal basis, the Trust has not diverged from the core employment terms or conditions 
agreed with recognised unions for all schools in Oxfordshire and continues to engage with employees through those union 
channels wherever needed and appropriate as part of the wider Oxfordshire schools’ community which includes other 
academy and local authority maintained schools in the county. 

Engagement with suppliers, customers and others in a business relationship with the academy trust 

Faringdon Learning Trust aims to foster strong working relationships with all companies that we engage with. By ensuring 
that any suppliers and customers understand the Trust’s ethos and the individual nature of all of our schools, we hope by 
working in partnership with them, that all parties will benefit from the relationship that is forged. The Trust follows due 
process with regard to tendering for contracts, looking where possible to contract for between 3 and 5 years to ensure that 
any relationship has time to develop. 

Related parties and other connected charities and organisations 

The Trust is not part of a wider network such as a soft federation. For further details of related parties and transactions 
during the year, see notes 11 and 26 of the financial statements. 

Objectives and activities 

Objects and Aims - taken from the Objects as described in the Articles of Association: 

(a) to advance for the public benefit education in the United Kingdom, in particular but without prejudice to the 
generality of the foregoing by establishing, maintaining, carrying on, managing and developing Academies which shall 
offer a broad and balanced curriculum and which shall include: 

i. Academies other than those designated Church of England, whether with or without a designated religious 

. character; and « 
ii. , Church of England Academies designated as such which shall be conducted in accordance with the principles, 

practices and tenets of the Church of England both generally and in particular in relation to arranging for 
religious education and daily acts of worship, and in having regard to any advice and following any 
reasonable directives issued by the Diocesan Board of Education, 

but in relation to each of the Academies to recognise and support their individual ethos, whether or not designated Church 
of England; and 

(b) as ancillary to (a), and with the written agreement of the Trustees in respect of Academies falling under (a)(ii), to 
promote for the benefit of the inhabitants of the areas served by the Academies the provision of services for other 
leisure time occupation of individuals who have need of such facilities by reason of their youth, age, infirmity or 
disablement, financial hardship or social and economic circumstances or for the public at large in the interests of social 

welfare and with the object of improving the condition of life of the said inhabitants. 
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FARINGDON LEARNING TRUST 

TRUSTEES' REPORT (CONTINUED) 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2022 
  

Faringdon Learning Trust Vision statement approved by the Board of Trustees: 

The vision for Faringdon Learning Trust is that we will create a seamless educational experience in which every learner 
thrives. 

Our vision is to embed a seamless Trust education for our children where each school and their team decide what is right 
for their children and is reflective of the communities they serve. Where Trust and Academy Leaders along with Trustees 
and Governors enable seamless education excellence under the umbrella of principles, we are all committed to. 
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FARINGDON LEARNING TRUST 

TRUSTEES' REPORT (CONTINUED) 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2022 
  

Objectives, strategies and activities 

The Trust’s Strategic plan for 2021- 22 was: 

  

Learners first Nurture and develop our people Strengthen and grow 

  

Pupil progress — Ensure every 
child has been able to continue o 
track for target in reading, writing 
and maths following periods o 
lockdown in the previous 2 

academic years. 

eter for Professional Excellence, 

ffering a range of opportunities for 
CPD through remote and live 
external and internal input. 

‘CPD — Embed the concept of thelMAT to MAT collaboration — 
Develop further joint working 
projects established with VAT 

  

Pupil Premium 
attendance and outcomes for 
disadvantaged pupils. 

ImproveiLeadership Establish 
leadership group for professional 
development of new leaders to the’ 
Trust 

Expansion - Target and work with 
non-Trust school leaders (including 
Governors) to secure mutually 
beneficial goals.     

loutcomes for SEND pupils. 
SEND — Improve attendance andiGovernance — Ensure all LGBs are 

operating effectively using the 
annual activity planner, and an 
action tracker and minutes reflect 
impactful strategical support and 

challenge. 

M 
Develop and 
arketing & Communications — 

embed a new 
ommunication strategy across the| 

Trust, including highlighting the 
work of the Central Trust Team. 

  

Faringdon Primary Educatio 
Prepare for the opening of tw 
primary schools with shared vision 
and ethos. 

oJ 
  

Create Relationships an 

which all 

school 

overarching Trust culture withinjEnsure . the 
pupils and_ staff arelinfrastructure of the new schools is| 

respected and which supports eachlready for opening Sept 2022 

Faringdon Primary Education - 
building and 

  

Curriculum sequencing Staff Survey — Follow up on th   
Develop a programme of subjec 

clear sequencing and progression 

in each school. 

staff survey from June 202 

results to include the 
evelopment of a staff charter and 

greater visibility of Trust team 
including CEO school visits. 

1 

deep dives with a focus onladdressing areas highlighted in 2 
science, art and history, ensuringlsurvey 

Governance - Extend governance 
review programme to include peer 

reviews. 

  

Ofsted -- Support — school 
lexpecting Ofsted inspection during 
the academic year.   Ofsted Support governors 

lexpecting Ofsted inspections during 
the academic year 

  
Equality and Diversity - 

Review and reflect on the Trusts| 
approach to equality and diversity. 

  

Mental Health Well Being 
Ensure all pupils are 

supported and early identification 
and intervention is in place where 

needed 

wel Mental Health Well Being 
Ensure all staff are well supported 
with a life work balance. 

ICT — Continue to develop the 
‘Trusts overall ICT strategy moving 
to a robust Microsoft platform, 
including development of the 
strategy group. 

  

Teaching and Learning - Develop) 

excellence in teaching and 
learning guidance to support the 

quality of education in each 
school.         
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FARINGDON LEARNING TRUST 

TRUSTEES' REPORT (CONTINUED) 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2022 
  

  

Early Years — Ensure all oun 
settings are fully able to deliver the 
new curriculum and _ baseline 
assessments and that provision 

or our youngest children is a high 
standard across the Trust with 
early support provided for those 

ho need it.         

Public benefit 
The trustees of Faringdon Learning Trust confirm that they have complied with their duty in Section 17(5) of the 2011 
Charities Act to have due regard to the guidance on public benefit published by the Charity Commission in exercising their 
powers or duties. 

Faringdon Learning Trust comprises a mixed comprehensive secondary school with a successful 6th Form, a Junior 
School and an Infant School, 3 Church of England Primary Schools and 2 Primary Schools. Together they offer an 
excellent educational environment for over 2800 pupils. Our successes are built upon the efforts of a highly qualified, hard- 

working and enthusiastic staff, well-motivated pupils, very supportive parents and a highly committed Trust Board with a 
strong connection with the local community. All of our schools have high quality pastoral care systems. 

Faringdon Learning Trust has excellent links with other Oxfordshire Schools, Academies and Multi-Academy Trusts, the 
Defence Academy, and so many more groups in our community. This ensures that we continue to generate better 

educational programmes for all young people, as well as improving our transitional activities for students who will be 
coming to Faringdon Community College. 

We value highly all contact with parents since we see a successful education being a partnership between parents, 
students and the school. By working together, we are able to meet our aim of ensuring that all who attend our Academy 
Schools will find it challenging, stimulating, caring and a happy place to be. 

Enabled by our close partnership and community connections, all pupils within member schools are able to participate in a 
wide variety of sports, clubs, trips and activities. 
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FARINGDON LEARNING TRUST 

TRUSTEES' REPORT (CONTINUED) 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2022 
  

Strategic report 
Achievements and performance 

Performance and Key Performance Indicators relate to specific Strategic Priorities which are detailed in the Objectives, 
Strategies and Activities section. 

Faringdon Learning Trust primary output is the delivery of outstanding education to all pupils in our Academy schools. The 
following information and data summarises the achievement and performance for each academy school from an 
educational perspective. 

Faringdon Community College 

Ofsted rating: Good Feb 2019 

e Key Stage 4: GCSE Results 2022 

- Progress 8: (provisional using 2019 national benchmarks) —0.28 

e 5 GCSE grades at 4+ including English and Maths 62.75% 

e 5 GCSE grades at 5+ including English and Maths 35.78% 

Summary: The first year post Covid of national exams has been disappointing and students achieved below professional 
predictions, particularly at higher grades. Mental health and well being have been a focus and attendance and re- 
establishing a highly positive behaviour culture have also taken time. The challenge for the school moving forwards is 
focussed on improving the progress and outcomes of SEND pupils. Higher prior attaining pupils also need support to 
ensure they achieve the higher grades predicted. Maths and business departments will be a focus for rapid improvement in 

2022-23. 

A Level 2022 

e Value added -0.17 (provisional) 
« Percentage passes at A*/A 30% 
e Percentage passes at A*/B 60% 
« Percentage passes at A*/C 82% 

An increase in results in every band compared to 2019 which was the last national examinations year with a satisfactory 
overall progress score and the vast majority of subjects showing positive scores. All students were placed on a progression 
route. 
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FARINGDON LEARNING TRUST 

TRUSTEES' REPORT (CONTINUED) 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2022 
  

Key performance indicators 

Primary School Summary 
End of Key Stage Performance 2021-22 

  

School & 
Ofsted rating 

Attainment 

    

(% reaching the expected standard o 

  

  

above) 

Reading |Writing Maths 

FJS KS2 |73% 59% 57%         

(Good March 
2018) 

  

Commentary: School were pleased with results with many pupils back on track for target post Covid, 
particularly in reading which had been a focus. Reading at Greater Depth was 29% and maths was 21%. 
This was in part a result of targeted group teaching to mid/high attainers whilst offering the right support 
to lower prior attainers. 

  

  

        
Commentary: High % of Greater Depth in R, W, M. Head is Director of Education for the FLT 2 days a 

    

    

  

    
Commentary: Head supported another school throughout the year. Support groups led by a teacher had 
la good impact. Greater Depth % pleasing: Reading 32%, Writing 36% and Maths 32% 

  

    

alts bes         
Commentary: Substantive full-time Head in post. 2 cross phase TLRs have had positive impact. Y6   cohort a third SEND. Maths low result was cohort specific. Good phonics results 84% Y1 met the’ 
standard following Read Write Inc scheme introduction. Pleased to retain Good rating in Ofsted 

  

    

      pers iiiey caer 4 aaNet 
  

Commentary: Reading at Greater Depth was high at 47%. Reading at Expected was below target and 
teacher. assessment of pupil outcomes. Staff absence was a challenge and teaching head 2 days a 
week. Maths at Greater Depth a focus next year with 16% in this year. =     
  

    

  

        

2021) 

2018) 

Buckland KS2 |100% 100% 100% 

(Outstanding 

Nuly 2022) week. School delighted to retain outstanding Ofsted rating in July. 

Shrivenham |KS2 |76% 80% 75% 

(Good Jan 
2017) 

John Blandy |KS2 [68% 68% 57% 

(Good Nov 
2021) 

inspection. 

Longcot &KS2 |79% 90% 95% 
Fernham 

(Outstanding 
2009) 

Watchfield |KS2 [69% 41% 54% 

(Good OctlCommentary: School supported in leadership by another Head this year. Restructure has resulted in an 
    Executive Headship and new Head of School post. This is very positive for the school. KS2 outcomes! 
were low. Y1 phonics had been a focus and is a success with 83% meeting the standard. 

      Commentary: Phonics results were lower than previous years and will be a focus moving forwards. 
Acting Head in post from February. New SENCO appointed mid-year and new pastoral lead. High level 
SEND and behaviour needs posed a challenge. School restructure means there is an Executive Head in 
post with a Head of School and new Deputy which is very positive for the school. School will transition to       la Primary school in September 2022. 
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Going concern 

After making appropriate enquiries, the board of trustees has a reasonable expectation that the academy trust has 
adequate resources to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future. For this reason, it continues to adopt 
the going concern basis in preparing the financial statements. Further details regarding the adoption of the going concern 
basis can be found in the Statement of Accounting Policies. 

Protecting the success of the academy trust 

The key objectives of the Trust are for the public to benefit from the education that we provide our pupils, ensuring that we 
manage and develop our Academies effectively so that they offer a broad and balanced education. Over the course of the 
academic year schools within the Trust needed to adapt how they operated so in taking account of the current situation 
with the Covid-19 pandemic. Schools rose to this challenge ensuring that all pupils continued to access a quality education 
despite many challenges. 

All schools remained open throughout, despite staffing challenges. The safety of staff and pupils remained a key priority 
during this period. During this timer, in line with DfE guidance the Trusts schools continued to plan and update risk 
assessments. 

Financial review 

The Trust’s financial position remains a key concern for trustees and it is still articulated as the trusts top risk. Whilst costs 
continue to grow, in particular both support and teaching staff costs, the funding per pupil did not keep pace with inflation, 
some relief has been received in the form of grants to cover increases in teachers’ pay and pension costs the long term 
funding of these specific costs remains uncertain. High needs budgets have also been under significant pressure with 
many schools within the Trust experiencing an increase in high special needs ratios. As a Trust experiencing continued 
growth in pupil numbers, the time lag in funding for these pupils when combined with current funding levels presents 
challenges to schools trying to maintain balanced budgets. 

The Trust’s reserves as at 31st August 2022 stand at £2,818k (including unrestricted general funds of £850k, restricted 
fixed asset funds of £595k and restricted general funds of £1,373k). The majority of the Trust’s income, £16,300k comes 
from ESFA or Local Government funding. 

The outcome of a successful Condition Improvement Fund bid for Buckland Primary School repair and replace windows 
saw much needed capital works amounting to £65K being completed during 2021-2022. FLT was successful in obtaining 
School Condition Allowance (SCA) funding of £559K in April 2022. This will now allow the trust to proactively plan capital 
works across the trusts estate. Condition survey reports were carried out during 2021-22, these along with the SCA 
funding will now form the basis of a trust estate strategy. 
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Reserves policy 

Despite growing financial pressure on revenue funding, the Trust has retained a credible reserve position made up of 
individual school reserves and an element of central reserve that has accrued since expansion in November 2013. 

The Trust Resources Committee completed an in-depth review of Trust reserves in 2021-22 in order to revisit the trusts 
Reserves Policy which is designed to assist in the Trusts strategic planning by considering how new projects or activities 
will be funded, it is also used to inform budget planning and risk management by identifying uncertainty around income 
streams and key expenditure areas. As a minimum, the Trusts seeks to maintain a revenue reserve balance equivalent to 
at least one-month’s salary for the entire trust plus known risks. 

An individual academy school surplus reserve may not be wholly available to that school at a given time. To ensure that 
the academy has an accurate understanding of reserves, the Chief Operations Officer maintains a detailed 5-year plan 
which shows the position for each school and the overall position for the academy. We have developed some 
assumptions, approved by the Resources Committee, to ensure that the trust retains a sufficient reserve to support its 
outputs. The plan enables individual academy schools to propose expenditure against their surplus balances to deliver 
school improvement plans, however it acknowledges that Trustees may be required to prioritise expenditure to ensure the 
academy always retains a sufficient reserve. 

Following a robust budget planning process, over the next 3-years, the trust will see a decrease in revenue reserves from 
£2.219M (AY2122) to £1.901M by AY2324. This decrease in reserves is as a result of higher staff pay costs, increase in 
utility costs and cost of inflation increases. The trust will continue to closely monitor the impact of these costs against a 
backdrop of limited funding increases, on its overall reserves position. As a result of qualifying for School Capital 
Allocation (SCA) the trust is now able to proactively manage capital projects in line with recommendations from school 

condition surveys which were carried out in 2021/2022. 

On 31 August 2022 the Academy held the following Reserves (excluding Fixed Asset Fund which represents Net Book 
Value and Pension Deficit): 

  

£ 

Unrestricted General Funds 850,000 

Restricted Capital Fund 595,000 
Restricted General Funds 1,373,000 

Reserves at 31 August 2022 2,818,000 

  

Hymans Robertson were instructed by Oxfordshire County Council, the Administering Authority to the Oxfordshire County 
Council Pension Fund, to undertake pension expense calculations in respect of pension benefits provided by the Local 
Government Pension Scheme (LGPS) to employees of Faringdon Learning Trust as at 31st August 2022. The LGPS is a 
defined benefit statutory scheme administered in accordance with LGPS Regulations. As in previous reports, we have 
stated that the LGPS deficit is likely to be met in the longer term from any combination of increased employer or employee 
contributions, increased government funding or change to scheme benefits. x 

Following a revaluation of the fund in early 2020 the FRS102 valuation of the fund as at 31st August 2022 shows a 
decrease in the deficit to £2.415M. This change has been due to the net discount rate (discount rate net of inflation) 
significantly increasing. The significant increase in the discount rate assumption coupled with a similar CP| assumption 
have resulted in the large gain in the balance sheet. The other change was to the longevity assumption leading to small 
gains on the obligations. The resulting deficit is likely to be met in the longer term from any combination of increased 
employee or employer contributions, increased government funding or change to scheme benefits. The deficit is 
underwritten by the Department of Education. Trustees continue to monitor the impact of any changes to the scheme that 
might have a direct impact on the Trust. 

The restricted funds will be spent in accordance with the terms of the particular funds. 
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Investment policy 

Investments will be made only in accordance with written Investment Policy approved by the Board of Trustees. During 
2019-2020 the Resources Committee took the decision to move £1M of the Trusts reserves into an investment account 
with Lloyds Banking Group. Whilst the interest rate is in line with national interest rates the Committee has held off making 
any further investment decisions until the financial markets had stabilised and improved. This position will be reviewed by 
Trustees during FY2223. 

Principal risks and uncertainties 

The trustees conducted a full review of the strategic risk management policy and the risk register during the year. The 
revised plan, which includes the development of risk management by individual Trust school, was approved in the Autumn 
of 2021. The risk register is a standing agenda item on the Trust Sub-Committee meetings and all major risks are 
discussed at Board meetings. At an operational level, the internal control systems and the exposure to risks are 
considered on a regular basis by the CEO and the Trust Leadership Team. 

The Trust's Strategic Plan outlines the academies operating procedures together with our means of identifying, analysing, 
managing, implementing strategies and reviewing risks. The Board of Trustees has made a considered choice about its 
desired risk profile, taking account of its legal obligations, its strategic objectives and public expectations of what it should 
deliver. 

The Board of Trustees define risk as: 

The probability and implications of an activity or event of potentially positive or negative consequences taking place. 

This definition of risk enables an approach that allows for the possibility of identifying and exploiting opportunities as well 
as identifying and mitigating threats. The Faringdon Learning Trust Risk Management strategy comprises 4 steps: 

e Step 1 — Risk Identification - In simple terms, risk identification aims to recognise what could go wrong, and how. 
It begins with the annual review of strategic objectives and the subsequent work conducted by the 3 Trust sub- 
committees (Resources, Quality of Education and Audit). However, all Trustees, Head Teachers and members of 
Trust Leadership Teams are responsible for highlighting any key risks that they identify. Strategic risks should be 
passed to the COO to collate in the Trust Risk Register for further analysis. 

¢ Step 2 — Risk Analysis — Risk analysis seeks to understand the likelihood of the activity or event occurring, the 
potential severity of the outcome, and to ascertain who owns each risk. The Trust has developed a risk matrix, 
showing likelihood versus impact, to determine the risk of any single event occurring. 

¢ Step 3 — Risk Management - Having identified and assessed the likely risks, the Board of Trustees, Trust sub- 
committees and/or Trust Leadership Team develop measures to reduce their likelihood and impact, mitigate 
unfavourable outcomes, and exploit opportunities that may arise. Risks are prioritised, so that attention can be 
focused on mitigating the most severe first. 

e Step 4 — Review — This process is an iterative process. The Risk Registér is maintained by the Trust Central 
Office, owned by the COO; it is reviewed regularly by the Trust Leadership Team and CEO who is responsible for 
raising strategic risks to the Board of Trustees. The Risk Management Strategy and the Risk Register must be 
reviewed annually by the Board of Trustees. Both the Risk Strategy and Risk Register are available on the Trust 
website to enable all Trustees to be familiar with strategic risks. 
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From 1st September 2021 to 31st August 2022, the Trust’s top two key risks, were: 

Potential failure of Academy Board to secure sufficient funds to deliver strategic objectives. In line with 
many Trusts and academies forecast funding levels continue to present the highest risk. Previous reports have 
highlighted our concerns associated with our ability to keep pace with rising staff costs, inflation, and utility costs 
against reductions in real term income. As a Trust experiencing continued growth in pupil numbers, the time lag in 
funding for these pupils when combined with current funding levels impacts on the ability for our schools to remain 
within planned budgets. The Trust Resources Committee receives this matter as a standing agenda item at every 
meeting and we are working with head teachers and local governing bodies to ensure that we manage in-year 
budgets as effectively as possible. The Trust has undertaken a thorough benchmarking exercise of schools within 
the Trust so that we are now able to compare our key lines of income and expenditure. 

Inability to recruit and retain enough capable and motivated staff. Recruiting and retaining high quality staff is 
continuing to be difficult against a backdrop of low unemployment and a jobs market that favours the employee. 
The reputation of all our schools is dependent of high-quality staff delivering outstanding education. 

Financial and risk management objectives and policies 

Fundraising 

Faringdon Learning Trust does not actively enter into fundraising by means of actively pursuing individuals. We do not 
work with or oversee any commercial/professional fundraisers to fundraise on our behalf and there conforming to 
standards does not apply. 

No monitoring of activities was undertaken, for the year ending 31st August 2022 we are unaware of any complaints that 
have been received and should anyone have any complaints they should follow the school complaints procedure clearly 

displayed on our website. 

Each of our schools may, as part of social public benefit organise small fundraising events this is done by voluntary 
donations through families and staff associated with the school for example non-uniform days or sponsored walks. 
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Streamlined energy and carbon reporting 

2022 2021 

Energy consumption kWh kWh 

‘ Aggregate of energy consumption in the year 

- Gas combustion 2,477,757 2,244,738 

- Fuel consumed for transport 804,784 741,699 

- Electricity purchased 14,601 10,271 

3,297,142 2,996,708 

2022 2021 

Emissions of CO2 equivalent 

Scope 1 - direct emissions 

- Gas combustion 452.00 411.00 

- Fuel consumed for owned transport 3.00 2.00 

455.00 413.00 

Scope 2 - indirect emissions 

- Electricity purchased 156.00 157.00 

Scope 3 - other indirect emissions 

- Fuel consumed for transport not owned by the academy trust 2.00 1.00 

Total gross emissions 613.00 571.00 

Intensity ratio 

Tonnes CO2e per pupil 0.20 0.19 

Quantification and reporting methodology 

metric tonnes metric tonnes 

We have followed the 2019 HM Government Environmental Reporting Guidelines. We have also used the GHG Reporting 
Protocol — Corporate Standard and have used the 2022 & 2021 UK Government's Conversion Factors for Company 
Reporting. 

Intensity measurement 

The chosen intensity measurement ratio is total gross emissions in metric tonnes CO2 equivalent per pupil, the 

recommended ratio for the sector. We have measured this in relation to the actual pupils attending the school and also 

against our maximum occupancy level. 

Measures taken to improve energy efficiency 

All new builds recently completed or planned for have been fitted with energy efficient heating and lighting. The 
replacement of windows at Buckland Primary, we have installed smart meters across all sites and increased video 
conferencing technology for staff meetings, to reduce the need for travel between sites. 
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Plans for future periods 

Despite the extremely challenging financial climate, Trustees are determined to press ahead with our approach to school 
support and improvement and our commitment to delivering on our strategic objectives. 

A key focus for school support in AY2223 as we start to return to normal practices will be to continue to support leadership 
teams as they deal with the consequences of the Covid 19 pandemic, in particularly continuing to provide an effective 
recovery plan, which focusses on having a plan in order for gaps in pupils’ skills and knowledge to be secured particularly 
for younger pupils who had a very disruptive start to school life. As well as maintaining an effective emotional wellbeing 
support plan. 

School improvement will also focus on improving outcomes for pupil premium and SEN students. Schools will also be 
supported to review and develop their curriculums so that they are sequenced effectively in order for children to know and 
remember more, so that knowledge builds over time. An enhanced peer review system will be implemented during the year 
to support self-evaluation and school improvement planning. 

The trust continues to work with the local authority on an expanded primary provision and relocation to a new site for 
Shrivenham Primary school which is due to happen during academic year 2023/2024 to enable transition to a 1.5 form 
entry and the addition of a nursery. Following a due diligence process with Ashbury Primary school they are looking to 
convert to academy status and join FLT on 18st January 2023. The trust is also entering a due diligence process with some 
additional primary schools during this academic year. 

However, our 2 major priorities for the short and medium term remain: 

Financial Stability — the Trust will continue to develop it’s 5-year budget planning process to enable schools and local 
governing bodies to plan ahead to meet the financial challenges that we will face over the next few years. We aim to start 
the budget process within the autumn term and to develop the detail through the spring term so that staffing challenges 
can be considered as early as possible in the process. We will seek to work collaboratively so that we can solve problems 
as a group and seek to share best practice across our schools. We will continue to reach beyond our boundaries to 
identify best practice from other Trusts within our region and nationally. 

Expansion — we will continue to seek out opportunities to expand our Trust in order to seek financial stability and to 
provide a peer challenge for Faringdon Community College. The Trust is currently working with 7 schools, which includes 
both primary and secondary with a view that they would hopefully join the Trust in the near future. 

Funds held as custodian trustee on behalf of others 

The trust holds no Assets and Funds as Custodian Trustee on behalf of others. 

Auditor 

In so far as the trustees are aware: - 

- there is no relevant audit information of which the charitable company's auditor is unaware; and 
- the trustees have taken all steps that they ought to have taken to make themselves aware of any relevant audit 
information and to establish that the auditor is aware of that information. 

Following a robust tender exercise Trustees agreed to reappoint Critchleys Audit LLP as the external auditors for the next 
reporting period. 

The trustees’ report, incorporating a strategic report, was approved by order of the board of trustees, as the company 
directors, on 08 December 2022 and signed on its behalf by: 

Liz Holmes 

Chairperson 
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Scope of responsibility 

As trustees, we acknowledge we have overall responsibility for ensuring that Faringdon Learning Trust has an 
effective and appropriate system of control, financial and otherwise. However, such a system is designed to manage 
rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business objectives, and can provide only reasonable and not 
absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss. 

The board of trustees has delegated the day-to-day responsibility to the CEO, as accounting officer, for ensuring 
financial controls conform with the requirements of both propriety and good financial management and in 
accordance with the requirements and responsibilities assigned to it in the funding agreement between Faringdon 
Learning Trust and the Secretary of State for Education. The accounting officer is also responsible for reporting to 
the board of trustees any material weaknesses or breakdowns in internal control. 

Governance 

The information on governance included here supplements that described in the Trustees’ Report and in the 
Statement of Trustees' Responsibilities. The board of trustees has formally met 10 times during the year, online via 
Teams due to the Covid-19 restrictions. Attendance during the year at meetings of the board of trustees was as 
follows: 

Trustees Meetings attended Out of possible 

Duncan Millard (CEO) 10 10 

Liz Holmes (Chairperson) 10 10 

Christine Price-Smith 6 10 

lan Wright (Resigned 29 June 2022) 8 9 

Paul Turner 9 10 

Anthony Cook 10 10 

Mark Greenwood 9 10 

Sarah Church (Resigned 3 December 2021) 3 3 

Carrie Insley (Resigned 16 May 2022) 5 7 

Jason St John Nicolle 9 10 

Malcolm Sperrin (Appointed 14 February 2022) 4 5 

Resignations and Appointments during the year: 

e lan Wright* resigned 29/06/2022 

e Sarah Church* resigned 03/12/2021 

¢ Carrie Insley* resigned 16/05/2022 

« Malcolm Sperrin* appointed 14/02/2022 

2021-2022 has proved to be another year of transition as our schools adjusted to the expectation they would 
operate as normal. Much has been done this year to bring back to life a rich and diverse provision which inspires 
pupils and staff. Our schools continued to successfully evaluate and adjust their provision to take into account the 
long-term impact of the pandemic on academic and personal development and the consequences of covid related 

absences. 

As a trust we have continued to promote a culture which values and empowers school leaders and staff to be 

innovative and reflective of the needs of their pupils and the communities they serve as they bring to life our 
ambition for every child to thrive. 

The trust continued to expand the number of its affiliate schools which allowed it to develop a more diverse pool of 
experiences, ideas, peer challenge and professional development opportunities. Through the reinforcement of this 
outward facing engagement and the support offer the trust has in place we strengthen the peer review element of 
our health check programme to gain new and fresh perspectives. 
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Over the course of this year 3 trust schools were inspected by Ofsted and through the hard work of trust and school 
leaders, school staff and the support of the central team each of the school's achieved outcomes which continued to 
recognise their good or outstanding status. In each case these outcomes reflected the work done by the schools 
and governors to secure an effect balance between understanding and addressing where learning gaps had 
developed and a focus on all pupils being able to build on their learning. 

This year schools, trustees and local governing bodies have once again been able to focus on the delivery of 
ambitious strategic plans. To support the opportunities for school development the trust added the roles of Executive 
Headteacher and Head of School to the range of leadership positions which could be utilised within its schools. 

Governance Reviews 

Our first full round of governance reviews was concluded this year, nearly all brought to a close the action plans 
they had developed to respond to the reviews as the year ended. The process of on-boarding a new review process 
which can be more nuanced and reflective of a Local Governing Body’s own review of its practices and impact, and 
whether or not it may be going through a period of significant transition, or well established has started. 

The trust continues to delegate significant areas of responsibility to local governing bodies as a robust governance 
system continues to be in place. A process which will allow the trust to review the circumstances under which 

delegations would be limited or revoked is in place. The alignment of the Trust’s Strategic Plan and Risk Registers 
with individual school risk registers continues to evolve. 

To ensure trustees and local governors are fully appraised of changing guidance and legal duties, regular updates 
which direct them to links to Government and the Key for Governor web sites are utilised. Additional briefing notes 
which are distilled from published information as it related to Trust legal responsibilities, actions and required 
activities are also circulated. This year governor training continued to be supported via signposting to online course 
and “team” sessions. 

Financial performance continues to be monitored at every school through regular meetings between the head 
teacher and the lead local governor for finance together with the Chief Operating Officer and the appropriate finance 
officer. These meetings continue to provide a means of ensuring high quality financial information is shared and 
used to inform financial planning. 

The trust reinstated in person meetings alongside “team’s” meetings and encouraged local governing bodies to 
develop a meeting schedule which allowed for in person and “team” based meetings to support the work life 
balance of staff, governors and trustees and to try and create a meetings culture which could be accessible to a 
more diverse pool of future governors and trustees. 

Trustees and governors continue to undertake the NGA annual skills audit at the start of the Autumn term to secure 
evidence which shows that both the Trust Board and Local Governing Bodies have the right people with the 
appropriate knowledge and experience necessary to effectively discharge the responsibilities they hold around the 
table. The information was also used to identify training needs and support recruitment. 

= 

Committees 

Trust Resources Committee — During this reporting period, the key issues for the trust resources committee were - 

e Oversight of the financial performance of the trust and in particular scrutiny of individual schools that cause 
concerns. Specifically, the committee have maintained oversight of activity to reduce the planned in-year 
deficit at Shrivenham Primary School and Faringdon Junior School and ongoing deficit at John Blandy 
Primary School as well as monitoring the impact of Covid19. 

e Implementation of recommendations raised by the internal and external audit processes. 
e Approval of Trust budget for AY2122 and the revised 5-year financial plan. 
e Revisiting the trusts reserves policy. 

Attendance at meetings in the year was as follows: 
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Duncan Millard (CEO) 

lan Wright (Resigned 29 June 2022) 

Anthony Cook 

Mark Greenwood 

Carrie Insley (Resigned 16 May 2022) 

David Hancox (local governor) 

Tim Clark 

Alex Bond (local governor) O
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Appointments and Resignations during the year 

- lan Wright resigned 29/06/2022 

- Carrie Insley resigned 16/05/2022 

The Independent Audit and Risk Committee 

The Faringdon Learning Trust’s Audit Committee’s remit expanded to include ‘Risk’, and has now completed its 8" 
year; its role is to review the effectiveness of the operation of the Trust’s Process Owners systems, through scrutiny 
of its control of risk and delivery of statutory and legal obligations and the assessment of its internal controls. An 
Internal Auditor (appointed from Cooper Parry Group Ltd) is in place to undertake visits to Trust Schools to provide 
the Audit Committee with independent insight into the operation of the financial management arrangements it has 
established and that are operated by officers working for the trust. 

Over the past year the Internal Auditor has undertaken the following audits: 

e Related Parties 

e« Census 
e HR Policy Application 

As well as undertaking a review of outstanding actions from prior years. 

Additionally, within its meetings the audit committee has also debated and reviewed: 

¢ IT Security 
e Trust’s Risk Register 

Attendance at meetings in the year was as follows: 

Committee member Meetings attended Out of possible 

Alex Peal (Chair) 

Karen Brusch 

Bob Slater ~ ~ 

Andy Robinson 

David Farquhar W
N
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w
W
W
w
W
W
 Ww 

Appointments and Resignations during the year 

- Bob Slater joined 5 October 2021 and resigned 12 April 2022. 

Conflicts of interests 

A register of the relevant business and pecuniary interests of Members, Trustees and senior employees is updated 
regularly and published on our school website. This register will also include relevant material interests arising from 
close family relationships with other members, trustees or employees. At each meeting, Trustees are required to 

declare any new conflicts of interest. 

The Trustee must absent themselves from the part of any meeting at which there is a discussion which relates to 
any part of their declaration. The Trustees must not vote on any such matter and is not to be counted when 
calculating whether a quorum of Trustees is present at the meeting. 
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Review of value for money 

As accounting officer, the CEO has responsibility for ensuring that the academy trust delivers good value in the use 
of public resources. The accounting officer understands that value for money refers to the educational and wider 
societal outcomes achieved in return for the taxpayer resources received. 

The accounting officer considers how the trust’s use of its resources has provided good value for money during 
each academic year, and reports to the board of trustees where value for money can be improved, including the use 
of benchmarking data where available. The accounting officer for the academy trust has delivered improved value 
for money during the year by: 

¢ Improving Educational Outcomes — In AY2122 all schools were affected the Covid-19 pandemic which 
meant all schools were affected with staff and pupil absence, recruitment was challenging especially for 
support roles and secondary shortage subjects. There was also uncertainty whether external assessments 
would take place in both primary and secondary schools. These eventually did take place and it is 
promising to see that in the primary schools, results were overall positive and in line or above national 
results for 2019. GCSE results were lower than anticipated, however there was a positive picture for many 
subjects in particular English and many foundation subjects. A level results were very positive and showed 
a positive value added. 

e Continued Collaborative Procurement — The Trust continues to strive for improved ways of procuring as 
contracts come up for renewal and through the plethora of services consumed by our 8 academy schools. 
Through the Oxfordshire Academies Business Managers Group, we seek to identify group projects where 
we can share the cost of major projects across a number of participating trusts. The group meet every 6-8 
weeks to progress a range of procurement projects. The Trust Resources Committee receives reports on 

larger procurement opportunities that have been realised. 

e Central Team— The Trust has a strong team of committed staff who provide expertise in a range of areas, 
this enables schools to receive expert advice and guidance ensuring that costs for these areas are kept to a 
minimum. 

« Innovative Staff Events — Through the trust ‘Training School’ we have arranged internal staff training and 
CPD for teaching and support staff, additionally shared inset days and working parties to look at specific 
elements of the curriculum across all key stages, give staff opportunities for further development whilst 
ensuring development of key subject areas. 

The purpose of the system of internal control 

The system of internal control is designed to manage risk to a reasonable level rather than to eliminate all risk of 
failure to achieve policies, aims and objectives. It can therefore only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance 
of effectiveness. The system of internal control is based on an on-going process designed to identify and prioritise 
the risks to the achievement of academy trust policies, aims and objectives, to evaluate the likelihood of those risks 
being realised and the impact should they be realised, and to manage them efficiently, effectively and economically. 
The system of internal control has been in place in Faringdon Learning Trust for the period 1 September 2021 to 31 
August 2022 and up to the date of approval of the annual report and accounts. 

Capacity to handle risk 

The board of trustees has reviewed the key risks to which the academy trust is exposed together with the operating, 
financial and compliance controls that have been implemented to mitigate those risks. The board of trustees is of 
the view that there is a formal ongoing process for identifying, evaluating and managing the academy trust's 
significant risks that has been in place for the period 1 September 2021 to 31 August 2022 and up to the date of 
approval of the annual report and accounts. This process is regularly reviewed by the board of trustees. 
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FARINGDON LEARNING TRUST 

GOVERNANCE STATEMENT (CONTINUED) 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2022 
  

The risk and control framework 

The academy trust's system of internal financial control is based on a framework of regular management 
information and administrative procedures including the segregation of duties and a system of delegation and 
accountability. In particular, it includes: 

e comprehensive budgeting and monitoring systems with an annual budget and periodic financial reports which 
are reviewed and agreed by the board of trustees; 

¢ regular reviews by the Trust Resources Committee of reports which indicate financial performance against the 
forecasts and of major purchase plans, capital works and expenditure programmes; 

e setting targets to measure financial and other performance; 

e clearly defined purchasing (asset purchase or capital investment) guidelines; 

e delegation of authority and segregation of duties; 

e identification and management of risks. 

The board of trustees has considered the need for specific internal audit function and has decided to maintain the 
requirement for an audit committee. The composition and function of the audit committee is highlighted on page 24 
of this report. The academy trust provides funding for an Internal Auditor for several days each year (the Peer 
Reviewer is employed by Chartered Accountants Cooper Parry Ltd). The work of the Internal Auditor is determined 
by the priorities of the audit committee to ensure full independence. 

The Internal Auditor provides a report following each targeted visit which is subsequently copied to the audit 
committee, the Trust Resources Committee and the COO. The report highlights observations together with 
recommendations and requires a response from the COO. At the end of each year, the Internal Audit reports are 
made available to the External Auditors and an annual report is provided to the Board of Trustees. The Chairperson 
of the Audit Committee attends the Board meeting in person to present their annual report and to agree the forward 
programme of inspection. The annual audit report for AY2021 was presented to the Board on 3rd December 2020. 
The key recommendations from the report were: 

Payroll 
e Ashared secure file of payroll changes in the month should be maintained. 
¢ All paperwork for new starters includes budget holder signature and evidence of review and approval. 
« Restricting system access to only those actions required by post holders’ job roles to minimise risk of loss 

or misappropriation of funds. Regular use of audit functionality would also mitigate this risk. 

Business Continuity Planning 
e All relevant documents are approved and finalised and saved as PDFs to avoid accidental changes, 

evidenced by signatures from an appropriate level of staff or at Trustee level, as relevant. 
e All Business Continuity Plan templates are completed as soon as possible to ensure that the 

documentation is consistent and up to date across the Trust and that this is reported back to Trustees when 
complete. These documents should be updated annually. 

e Obtain up to date emergency building plans for all schools and review these on a regular basis to ensure 
that plans and costs are up to date. 

A programme of work has been developed for the next year to include reviews of: 

e Review of Pupil Census Processes 
e Review of Related Party Transactions — processes for capturing and monitoring 
e Review of Absence Management — application of policy 

The Trust can confirm that the internal audit committee has delivered their schedule of work as planned and that 
there have been no material control issues arising requiring remedial action. 
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FARINGDON LEARNING TRUST 

GOVERNANCE STATEMENT (CONTINUED) 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2022 
  

Review of effectiveness 

As accounting officer, the CEO has responsibility for reviewing the effectiveness of the system of internal control. 
During the year in question the review has been informed by: 

the work of the internal audit committee and the reports from the Peer Reviewer; 

the work of the external auditor; 
the financial management and governance self-assessment process; 
the work of the executive managers within the academy trust who have responsibility for the development and 
maintenance of the internal control framework. 

The accounting officer has been advised of the implications of the result of their review of the system of internal 
control by the Independent Audit and Risk Committee and a plan to address weaknesses and ensure continuous 
improvement of the system is in place. 

Approved by order of the board of trustees on 08 December 2022 and signed on its behalf by: 

Liz Holmes 

Chairperso 
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FARINGDON LEARNING TRUST 

STATEMENT OF REGULARITY, PROPRIETY AND COMPLIANCE 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2022 
  

As accounting officer of Faringdon Learning Trust, | have considered my responsibility to notify the academy trust 
board of trustees and the Education and Skills Funding Agency (ESFA) of material irregularity, impropriety and non- 
compliance with terms and conditions of all funding received by the academy trust, under the funding agreement in 
place between the academy trust and the Secretary of State for Education. As part of my consideration | have had 
due regard to the requirements of the Academy Trust Handbook 2021. 

| confirm that | and the academy trust's board of trustees are able to identify any material irregular or improper use 
of funds by the academy trust, or material non-compliance with the terms and conditions of funding under the 
academy trust's funding agreement and the Academy Trust Handbook 2021. 

| confirm that no instances of material irregularity, impropriety or funding non-compliance have been discovered to 
date. If any instances are identified after the date of this statement, these will be notified to the board of trustees and 
ESFA. 

   Anne Lynn 

Accounting Officer 

08 December 2022 
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FARINGDON LEARNING TRUST 

STATEMENT OF TRUSTEES' RESPONSIBILITIES 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2022 
  

The trustees (who are also the directors of Faringdon Learning Trust for the purposes of company law) are 
responsible for preparing the trustees’ report and the accounts in accordance with the Academies Accounts 
Direction 2021 to 2022 published by the Education and Skills Funding Agency, United Kingdom Accounting 
Standards (United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice) and applicable law and regulations. 

Company law requires the trustees to prepare accounts for each financial year. Under company law, the trustees 
must not approve the accounts unless they are satisfied that they give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of 
the charitable company and of its incoming resources and application of resources, including its income and 
expenditure, for that period. 

In preparing these accounts, the trustees are required to: 

¢ select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently; 
¢ observe the methods and principles in the Charities SORP 2019 and the Academies Accounts Direction 2021 to 

2022; 
e make judgements and accounting estimates that are reasonable and prudent; 
e state whether applicable UK Accounting Standards have been followed, subject to any material departures 

disclosed and explained in the accounts; and 

e prepare the accounts on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to presume that the charitable 
company will continue in business. 

The trustees are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain the 
charitable company's transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the 
charitable company and enable them to ensure that the accounts comply with the Companies Act 2006. They are 
also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the charitable company and hence for taking reasonable steps for 
the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities. 

The trustees are responsible for ensuring that in its conduct and operation the charitable company applies financial 
and other controls, which conform with the requirements both of propriety and of good financial management. They 
are also responsible for ensuring that grants received from ESFA/DfE have been applied for the purposes intended. 

The trustees are responsible for the maintenance and integrity of the corporate and financial information included on 
the charitable company's website. Legislation in the United Kingdom governing the preparation and dissemination of 
accounts may differ from legislation in other jurisdictions. 

Approved by order of the members of the board of trustees on 08 December 2022 and signed on its behalf by: 

Liz Holmes 

Chairperson 
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A 
FARINGDON LEARNING TRUST CRITCALEYS 

AuDIT LLP 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF FARINGDON LEARNING 
TRUST 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2022 
  

Opinion 

We have audited the accounts of Faringdon Learning Trust for the year ended 31 August 2022 which comprise the 
statement of financial activities, the balance sheet, the statement of cash flows and notes to the accounts, including 
significant accounting policies. The financial reporting framework that has been applied in their preparation is 
applicable law and United Kingdom Accounting Standards, including Financial Reporting Standard 102 ‘The 
Financial’ Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland’ (United Kingdom Generally Accepted 
Accounting Practice), the Charities SORP 2019 and the Academies Accounts Direction 2021 to 2022 issued by the 
Education and Skills Funding Agency. 

In our opinion the accounts: 

- give a true and fair view of the state of the charitable company's affairs as at 31 August 2022 and of its 
incoming resources and application of resources, including its income and expenditure, for the year then 
ended; 

- have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice; 

- have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006; and 

- have been prepared in accordance with the Charities SORP 2019 and the Academies Accounts Direction 
2021 to 2022. 

Basis for opinion 

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (ISAs (UK)) and applicable 
law. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the ‘Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of 
the accounts’ section of our report. We are independent of the academy trust in accordance with the ethical 
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the accounts in the UK, including the FRC’s Ethical Standard, and we 
have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We believe that the audit 
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. 

Conclusions relating to going concern 

In auditing the financial statements, we have concluded that the trustees’ use of the going concern basis of 
accounting in the preparation of the financial statements is appropriate. 

Based on the work we have performed, we have not identified any material uncertainties relating to events or 
conditions that, individually or collectively, may cast significant doubt on the academy trust’s ability to continue as a 
going concern for a period of at least twelve months from when the financial statements are authorised for issue. 

Our responsibilities and the responsibilities of the trustees with respect to going concern are described in the 
relevant sections of this report. 

Other information _ < 

The other information comprises the information included in the annual report other than the accounts and our 

auditor's report thereon. The trustees are responsible for the other information contained within the annual report. 

Our opinion on the accounts does not cover the other information and, except to the extent otherwise explicitly 
stated in our report, we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon. Our responsibility is to read the 
other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the 
accounts or our knowledge obtained in the course of the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If 
we identify such material inconsistencies or apparent material misstatements, we are required to determine whether 

this gives rise to a material misstatement in the accounts themselves. If, based on the work we have performed, we 

conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. 

We have nothing to report in this regard. 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF FARINGDON LEARNING 
TRUST (CONTINUED) 
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Opinions on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006 

In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit: 

- the information given in the trustees’ report including the incorporated strategic report for the financial year for 
which the accounts are prepared is consistent with the accounts; and 

- the trustees’ report including the incorporated strategic report has been prepared in accordance with 
applicable legal requirements. 

Matters on which we are required to report by exception 

In the light of the knowledge and understanding of the academy trust and its environment obtained in the course of 
the audit, we have not identified material misstatements in the trustees’ report, including the incorporated strategic 
report. 

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters in relation to which the Companies Act 2006 requires 
us to report to you if, in our opinion: 

- adequate accounting records have not been kept, or returns adequate for our audit have not been received 
from branches not visited by us; or 

- the accounts are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns; or 

- certain disclosures of trustees’ remuneration specified by law are not made; or 

- we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit. 

Responsibilities of trustees 

As explained more fully in the statement of trustees’ responsibilities, the trustees are responsible for the preparation 

of the accounts and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view, and for such internal control as the 
trustees determine is necessary to enable the preparation of accounts that are free from material misstatement, 
whether due to fraud or error. In preparing the accounts, the trustees are responsible for assessing the academy 
trust's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using 
the going concern basis of accounting unless the trustees either intend to liquidate the charitable company, or have 
no realistic alternative but to do so. 

Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the accounts 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the accounts as a whole are free from material 
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable 
assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs (UK) 
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are 
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic 
decisions of users taken on the basis of these accounts. 

The extent to which our procedures are capable of detecting irregularities, including fraud, is detailed below. 

cs = 
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Our approach to identifying and assessing the risks of material misstatement in respect of irregularities, including 
fraud and non-compliance with laws and regulations, was as follows: 

e the engagement partner ensured that the engagement team collectively had the appropriate competence, 

capabilities and skills to identify or recognise non-compliance with applicable laws and regulations; 

e we identified the laws and regulations applicable to the company through discussions with trustees and 

other management, and from our commercial knowledge and experience of the client's business sector; 

e we focused on specific laws and regulations which we considered may have a direct material effect on the 
financial statements or the operations of the company, including the Companies Act 2006, the Charities Act 
2011, ESFA requirements, taxation legislation, data protection, anti-bribery, employment, environmental 

and health and safety legislation; 

e we assessed the extent of compliance with the laws and regulations identified above through making 
enquiries of management and inspecting legal correspondence; and 

¢ identified laws and regulations were communicated with the audit team regularly and the team remained 
alert to instances of non-compliance throughout the audit. 

We assessed the susceptibility of the company's financial statements to material misstatement, including obtaining 
an understanding of how fraud might occur, by: 

e making enquiries of management as to where they considered there was susceptibility to fraud, their 
knowledge of actual, suspected and alleged fraud; and 

e considering the internal controls in place to mitigate risks of fraud and non-compliance with laws and 
regulations. 

To address the risk of fraud through management bias and override of controls, we: 
e performed analytical procedures to identify any unusual or unexpected relationships; 

e tested journal entries to identify unusual transactions; 

e assessed whether judgements and assumptions made in determining whether accounting estimates were 

indicative of potential bias; and 

¢ investigated the rationale behind significant or unusual transactions. 

In response to the risk of irregularities and non-compliance with laws and regulations, we designed procedures 
which included, but were not limited to: 

+ agreeing financial statement disclosures to underlying supporting documentation; 

e reading the minutes of meetings of those charged with governance; 

e enquiring of management as to actual and potential litigation and claims; and 

e reviewing correspondence with HMRC, the ESFA and the company’s legal advisors. 

There are inherent limitations in our audit procedures described above. The more removed that laws and 
regulations are from financial transactions, the less likely it is that we would become aware of non-compliance. 

Auditing standards also limit the audit procedures required to identify non-compliance with laws and regulations to 
enquiry of the directors/trustees and other management and the inspection of regulatory and legal correspondence, 
if any. 

Material misstatements that arise due to fraud can be harder to detect than those that arise from error as they may 
involve deliberate concealment or collusion. 

A further description of our responsibilities is available on the Financial Reporting Council’s website at: https:// 
www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This description forms part of our auditor's report. 
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Use of our report 

This report is made solely to the charitable company's members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 
of the Companies Act 2006. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the charitable company's 
members those matters we are required to state to them in an auditor's report and for no other purpose. To the 
fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the charitable 
company and the charitable company's members as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we 
have formed. 

Katherine Wilkes (Senior Statutory Auditor) 

forand on behalf of Critchleys AuditLLP i neetetettettteeees 

Chartered Accountants 

Statutory Auditor Beaver House 

23-38 Hythe Bridge Street 

Oxford 

OX1 2EP 
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FARINGDON LEARNING TRUST 

INDEPENDENT REPORTING ACCOUNTANT'S ASSURANCE REPORT ON 
REGULARITY TO FARINGDON LEARNING TRUST AND THE EDUCATION AND SKILLS 
FUNDING AGENCY 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2022 
  

In accordance with the terms of our engagement letter dated 20 August 2021 and further to the requirements of the 
Education and Skills Funding Agency (ESFA) as included in the Academies Accounts Direction 2021 to 2022, we 
have carried out an engagement to obtain limited assurance about whether the expenditure disbursed and income 
received by Faringdon Learning Trust during the period 1 September 2021 to 31 August 2022 have been applied to 
the purposes identified by Parliament and the financial transactions conform to the authorities which govern them. 

This report is made solely to Faringdon Learning Trust and ESFA in accordance with the terms of our engagement 
letter. Our work has been undertaken so that we might state to the Faringdon Learning Trust and ESFA those 
matters we are required to state in a report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do 
not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than Faringdon Learning Trust and ESFA, for our work, for this 
report, or for the conclusion we have formed. 

Respective responsibilities of Faringdon Learning Trust's accounting officer and the reporting accountant 

The accounting officer is responsible, under the requirements of Faringdon Learning Trust’s funding agreement with 
the Secretary of State for Education dated 1 September 2014 and the Academy Trust Handbook, extant from 1 
September 2021, for ensuring that expenditure disbursed and income received is applied for the purposes intended 
by Parliament and the financial transactions conform to the authorities which govern them. 

Our responsibilities for this engagement are established in the United Kingdom by our profession’s ethical guidance, 
and are to obtain limited assurance and report in accordance with our engagement letter and the requirements of 
the Academies Accounts Direction 2021 to 2022. We report to you whether anything has come to our attention in 

carrying out our work which suggests that in all material respects, expenditure disbursed and income received 
during the period 1 September 2021 to 31 August 2022 have not been applied to purposes intended by Parliament 

or that the financial transactions do not conform to the authorities which govern them. 

Approach 

We conducted our engagement in accordance with the Framework and Guide for External Auditors and Reporting 
Accountant of Academy Trusts issued by ESFA. We performed a limited assurance engagement as defined in our 
engagement letter. 

The objective of a limited assurance engagement is to perform such procedures as to obtain information and 
explanations in order to provide us with sufficient appropriate evidence to express a negative conclusion on 
regularity. 

A limited assurance engagement is more limited in scope than a reasonable assurance engagement and 

consequently does not enable us to obtain assurance that we would become aware of all significant matters that 
might be identified in a reasonable assurance engagement. Accordingly, we do not express a positive opinion. _ 

Our engagement includes examination, on a test basis, of evidence relevant to the regularity and propriety of the 
academy trust's income and expenditure. 

The work undertaken to draw to our conclusion includes: 

e Review of minutes of meetings of the Board of Trustees and obtaining representations concerning access to 
information, disclosure and provision of information. 

e Evaluation of the general control environment of the academy trust, extending the procedures required for 

financial statements to include regularity. 

e Assessment and testing of a sample of the specific control activities over regularity of a particular activity. 

e Carrying out substantive testing to cover authorisation of expenditure within internal delegated authorities and 
externally imposed limits. 

¢ Consideration of whether activities carried out are within the charitable objects. 
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Conclusion 

In the course of our work, nothing has come to our attention which suggests that in all material respects the 
expenditure disbursed and income received during the period 1 September 2021 to 31 August 2022 has not been 
applied to purposes intended by Parliament and the financial transactions do not conform to the authorities which 
govern them. 

Reporting Accountant 

Critchleys Audit LLP 

Beaver House 

23-38 Hythe Bridge Street 

Oxford 

OX1 2EP 

Dated: ........ cee 
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FARINGDON LEARNING TRUST 

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL ACTIVITIES 
INCLUDING INCOME AND EXPENDITURE ACCOUNT 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2022 
  

  

    

  

    

  

  

Unrestricted 

funds 

Notes £'000 

Income and endowments from: 

Donations and capital grants 3 10 

Charitable activities: 

- Funding for educational operations 4 696 

Other trading activities 5 36 

Investments 6 1 

Total 743 

Expenditure on: 

Charitable activities: 

- Educational operations 9 739 

Total 7 739 

Net income/(expenditure) 4 

Transfers between funds 18 - 

Other recognised gains/(losses) 

Actuarial gains/(losses) on defined 

benefit pension schemes 20 - 

Net movement in funds 4 

Reconciliation of funds 

Total funds brought forward 846 

Total funds carried forward 850 
    

    

    
    

    

    
    

    

    

Restricted funds: Total Total 

General Fixed asset 2022 2021 

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 

- 701 711 3,110 

16,344 - 17,040 16,145 

- - 36 23 

- < 1 1 

16,344 701 17,788 19,279 

17,301 1,559 19,599 18,047 

17,301 1,559 19,599 18,047 

(957) (858) (1,811) 1,232 

(32) 32 - - 

8,597 - 8,597 (1,708) 

7,608 (826) 6,786 (476) 

(8,650) 24,891 17,087 17,563 

(1,042) 24,065 23,873 17,087 
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Comparative year information Unrestricted Restricted funds: Total 

Year ended 31 August 2021 funds General Fixed asset 2021 

Notes £°000 £°000 £°000 £°000 

Income and endowments from: 

Donations and capital grants 3 23 2 3,085 3,110 

Charitable activities: 

- Funding for educational operations 4 605 15,540 - 16,145 

Other trading activities 5 23 - - 23 

Investments 6 1 - - 1 

Total 652 15,542 3,085 19,279 

Expenditure on: 

Charitable activities: 

- Educational operations 9 651 15,797 1,599 18,047 

Total 7 651 15,797 1,599 18,047 

Net income/(expenditure) 1 (255) 1,486 1,232 

Transfers between funds 18 - (367) 367 - 

Other recognised gains/(losses) 

Actuarial losses on defined benefit pension 
schemes 20 - (1,708) - (1,708) 

Net movement in funds 1 (2,330) 1,853 (476) 

Reconciliation of funds 

Total funds brought forward 845 (6,320) 23,038 17,563 

Total funds carried forward 846 (8,650) 24,891 17,087 
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FARINGDON LEARNING TRUST 

BALANCE SHEET 

AS AT 31 AUGUST 2022 
  

Fixed assets 

Intangible assets 

Tangible assets 

Current assets 

Debtors 

Cash at bank and in hand 

Current liabilities 

Creditors: amounts falling due within one 
year 

Net current assets 

Net assets excluding pension liability 

Defined benefit pension scheme liability 

Total net assets 

Funds of the academy trust: 

Restricted funds 

- Fixed asset funds 

- Restricted income funds 

- Pension reserve 

Total restricted funds 

Unrestricted income funds 

Total funds 

Notes 

13 

14 

15 

16 

20 

18 

18 

2022 

£'000 £°000 

15 

23,395 
  

23,470 

625 

3,910 
  

4,535 

(1,717) 
  

2,818 
  

26,288 

(2,415) 
  

23,873 
  

24,065 

1,373 

(2,415) 
  

23,023 

850 
  

23,873 
    

2021 

£°000 £'000 

89 

24,722 
  

24,811 

137 

2,718 
  

3,455 

(1,472) 
  

1,983 
  

26,794 

(9,707) 
  

17,087 
    

24,891 
1,057 

(9,707) 
  

16,241 

846 
  

17,087 
    

The accounts on pages 36 to 64 were approved by the trustees and authorised for issue on 08 December 2022 and 

are signed on their behalf by: 

Liz Holmes 

Chairperson 

Company registration number 07977368 
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STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2022 
  

Notes 

Cash flows from operating activities 

Net cash provided by operating activities 21 

Cash flows from investing activities 

Dividends, interest and rents from investments 

Capital grants from DfE Group 

Capital funding received from sponsors and others 

Purchase of intangible fixed assets 

Purchase of tangible fixed assets 

Net cash provided by/(used in) investing activities 

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents in the 
reporting period 

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year 

Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year 

2022 
£000 £000 

708 

' 

691 
10 

(218) 

484 

1,192 

2,718 

3,910 

2021 
£'000 £'000 

1,276 

1 
59 

296 
(75) 

(1,389) 

(1,108) 

168 

2,550 

2,718 

 



FARINGDON LEARNING TRUST 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2022 
  

1.1 

1.2 

1.3 

Accounting policies 

Faringdon Learning Trust is a charitable company. The address of its principal place of business is given on 
page 1 and the nature of its operations are set out in the trustees’ report. 

A summary of the principal accounting policies adopted (which have been applied consistently, except where 
noted), judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty, is set out below. 

Basis of preparation 

The accounts of the academy trust, which is a public benefit entity under FRS 102, have been prepared under 
the historical cost convention in accordance with the Financial Reporting Standard Applicable in the UK and 
Republic of Ireland (FRS 102), the Accounting and Reporting by Charities: Statement of Recommended 
Practice applicable to charities preparing their accounts in accordance with the Financial Reporting Standard 
applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland (FRS 102) (Charities SORP (FRS 102)), the Academies Accounts 
Direction 2021 to 2022 issued by ESFA, the Charities Act 2011 and the Companies Act 2006. 

Faringdon Learning Trust meets the definition of a public benefit entity under FRS 102. 

Going concern 

The trustees assess whether the use of going concern is appropriate, ie whether there are any material 
uncertainties related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the ability of the charitable 
company to continue as a going concern. The trustees make this assessment in respect of a period of at least 
one year from the date of authorisation for issue of the accounts and have concluded that the academy trust 
has adequate resources to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future and there are no 
material uncertainties about the academy trust’s ability to continue as a going concern. Thus they continue to 
adopt the going concern basis of accounting in preparing the accounts. 

Income 

All incoming resources are recognised when the academy trust has entitlement to the funds, the receipt is 
probable and the amount can be measured reliably. 

Grants 

Grants are included in the statement of financial activities on a receivable basis. The balance of income 
received for specific purposes but not expended during the period is shown in the relevant funds on the 
balance sheet. Where income is received in advance of meeting any performance-related conditions there is 
not unconditional entitlement to the income and its recognition is deferred and included in creditors as 
deferred income until the performance-related conditions are met. Where entitlement occurs before income is 

received, the income is accrued. 

General Annual Grant is recognised in full in-the statement of financial activities in the period for which it is 
receivable, and any abatement in respect of the period is deducted from income and recognised as a liability. 

Capital grants are recognised in full when there is an unconditional entitlement to the grant. Unspent amounts 
of capital grants are reflected in the balance sheet in the restricted fixed asset fund. Capital grants are 
recognised when there is entitlement and are not deferred over the life of the asset on which they are 
expended. 

Sponsorship income 

Sponsorship income provided to the academy trust which amounts to a donation is recognised in the 
statement of financial activities in the period in which it is receivable (where there are no performance-related 
conditions), where the receipt is probable and it can be measured reliably. 

Donations 

Donations are recognised on a receivable basis (where there are no performance-related conditions) where 
the receipt is probable and the amount can be reliably measured. 
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1.4 

1.5 

Accounting policies (Continued) 

Other income 

Other income, including the hire of facilities, is recognised in the period it is receivable and to the extent the 
academy trust has provided the goods or services. 

Donated goods, facilities and services 

Goods donated for resale are included at fair value, being the expected proceeds from sale less the expected 
costs of sale. If it is practical to assess the fair value at receipt, it is recognised in stock and ‘Income from 
other trading activities’. Upon sale, the value of the stock is charged against ‘Income from other trading 
activities’ and the proceeds are recognised as ‘Income from other trading activities’. Where it is impractical to 
fair value the items due to the volume of low value items they are not recognised in the accounts until they are 
sold. This income is recognised within ‘Income from other trading activities’. 

Donated fixed assets 
Donated fixed assets are measured at fair value unless it is impractical to measure this reliably, in which case 

the cost of the item to the donor is used. The gain is recognised as income from donations and a 
corresponding amount is included in the appropriate fixed asset category and depreciated over the useful 

economic life in accordance with the academy trust's accounting policies. 

Expenditure 

Expenditure is recognised once there is a legal or constructive obligation to transfer economic benefit to a 
third party, it is probable that a transfer of economic benefits will be required in settlement, and the amount of 

the obligation can be measured reliably. 

Expenditure is classified by activity. The costs of each activity are made up of the total of direct costs and 
shared costs, including support costs involved in undertaking each activity. Direct costs attributable to a single 
activity are allocated directly to that activity. Shared costs which contribute to more than one activity and 
support costs which are not attributable to a single activity are apportioned between those activities on a basis 

consistent with the use of resources. Central staff costs are allocated on the basis of time spent, and 

depreciation charges are allocated on the portion of the asset’s use. 

All resources expended are inclusive of irrecoverable VAT. 

Expenditure on raising funds 

This includes all expenditure incurred by the academy trust to raise funds for its charitable purposes and 
includes costs of all fundraising activities events and non-charitable trading. 

Charitable activities = 

These are costs incurred on the academy trust's edutational operations, including support costs and costs 
relating to the governance of the academy trust apportioned to charitable activities. 

Intangible fixed assets and amortisation 

Intangible assets costing £5,000 or more are capitalised and recognised when future economic benefits are 
probable and the cost or value of the asset can be measured reliably. Intangible assets are initially recognised 
at cost and are subsequently measured at cost net of amortisation and any provision for impairment. 

Amortisation is provided on intangible fixed assets at rates calculated to write off the cost of each asset on a 
straight-line basis over its expected useful life, as follows: 

e Purchased computer software - 10 years 
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1.6 

1.7 

1.8 

1.9 

Accounting policies (Continued) 

Tangible fixed assets and depreciation 

Assets costing £5,000 or more are capitalised as tangible fixed assets and are carried at cost, net of 
depreciation and any provision for impairment. 

Where tangible fixed assets have been acquired with the aid of specific grants, either from the government or 
from the private sector, they are included in the balance sheet at cost and depreciated over their expected 
useful economic life. Where there are specific conditions attached to the funding that require the continued 
use of the asset, the related grants are credited to a restricted fixed asset fund in the statement of financial 
activities and carried forward in the balance sheet. Depreciation on the relevant assets is charged directly to 
the restricted fixed asset fund in the statement of financial activities. Where tangible fixed assets have been 
acquired with unrestricted funds, depreciation on such assets is charged to the unrestricted fund. 

Depreciation is provided on all tangible fixed assets, at rates calculated to write off the cost of each asset ona 
straight-line basis over its expected useful life, as follows: 

Leasehold buildings 10-45 years 

Computer equipment 3 years 

Furniture and equipment 5 years 

A review for impairment of a fixed asset is carried out if events or changes in circumstances indicate that the 
carrying value of any fixed asset may not be recoverable. Shortfalls between the carrying value of fixed assets 
and their recoverable amounts are recognised as impairments. Impairment losses are recognised in the 
statement of financial activities. 

Liabilities 

Liabilities are recognised when there is an obligation at the balance sheet date as a result of a past event, it is 
probable that a transfer of economic benefit will be required in settlement, and the amount of the settlement 
can be estimated reliably. Liabilities are recognised at the amount that the academy trust anticipates it will pay 
to settle the debt or the amount it has received as advanced payments for the goods of services it must 
provide. 

Leased assets 

Rentals under operating leases are charged on a straight-line basis over the lease term. 

Financial instruments 

The academy trust only holds basic financial instruments as defined in FRS 102. The financial assets and 
financial liabilities of the academy trust and their measurement basis are as follows. 

Financial assets 

Trade and other debtors are basic financial instruments and are debt instruments measured at amortised cost. 

Prepayments are not financial instruments. 

Cash at bank is classified as a basic financial instrument and is measured at face value. 

Financial liabilities 

Trade creditors, accruals and other creditors are financial instruments, and are measured at amortised cost. 
Taxation and social security are not included in the financial instruments disclosure definition. 

Deferred income is not deemed to be a financial liability, as the cash settlement has already taken place and 
there is an obligation to deliver services rather than cash or another financial instrument. 
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1 

1.10 

1.11 

1.12 

1.13 

Accounting policies (Continued) 

Taxation 

The academy trust is considered to pass the tests set out in Paragraph 1 Schedule 6 of the Finance Act 2010 
and therefore it meets the definition of a charitable company for UK corporation tax purposes. Accordingly, the 
academy trust is potentially exempt from taxation in respect of income or capital gains received within 
categories covered by chapter 3 part 11 of the Corporation Tax Act 2010 or Section 256 of the Taxation of 
Chargeable Gains Act 1992, to the extent that such income or gains are applied exclusively to charitable 
purposes. 

Pensions benefits 

Retirement benefits to employees of the academy trust are provided by the Teachers’ Pension Scheme (‘TPS’) 
and the Local Government Pension Scheme (‘'LGPS'). These are defined benefit schemes and the assets are 
held separately from those of the academy trust. 

The TPS is an unfunded scheme and contributions are calculated to spread the cost of pensions over 
employees’ working lives with the academy trust in such a way that the pension cost is a substantially level 
percentage of current and future pensionable payroll. The contributions are determined by the Government 
Actuary based on quadrennial valuations using a prospective unit credit method. The TPS is an unfunded 
multi-employer scheme with no underlying assets to assign between employers. Consequently, the TPS is 
treated as a defined contribution scheme for accounting purposes and the contributions are recognised in the 
period to which they relate. 

The LGPS is a funded multi-employer scheme and the assets are held separately from those of the academy 
trust in separate trustee administered funds. Pension scheme assets are measured at fair value and liabilities 
are measured on an actuarial basis using the projected unit credit method and discounted at a rate equivalent 
to the current rate of return on a high-quality corporate bond of equivalent term and currency to the liabilities. 
The actuarial valuations are obtained at least triennially and are updated at each balance sheet date. The 
amounts charged to net income or expenditure are the current service costs and the costs of scheme 
introductions, benefit changes, settlements and curtailments. They are included as part of staff costs as 
incurred. Net interest on the net defined benefit liability/asset is also recognised in the statement of financial 
activities and comprises the interest cost on the defined benefit obligation and interest income on the scheme 
assets, calculated by multiplying the fair value of the scheme assets at the beginning of the period by the rate 
used to discount the benefit obligations. The difference between the interest income on the scheme assets 
and the actual return on the scheme assets is recognised in other recognised gains and losses. Actuarial 
gains and losses are recognised immediately in other recognised gains and losses. 

Fund accounting 

Unrestricted income funds represent those resources which may be used towards meeting any of the 
charitable objects of the academy trust at the discretion of the trustees. 

= 

Restricted fixed asset funds are resources which are to be applied to specific capital purposes imposed by 
funders where the asset acquired or created is held for a specific purpose. 

Restricted general funds comprise all other restricted funds received with restrictions imposed by the funder/ 
donor and include grants from the Department for Education Group. 

Agency arrangements 

The academy trust acts as an agent in distributing 16-19 bursary funds from ESFA. Payments received from 
ESFA and subsequent disbursements to students are excluded from the statement of financial activities as the 
academy trust does not have control over the charitable application of the funds. The academy trust can use 
up to 5% of the allocation towards its own administration costs and this is recognised in the statement of 
financial activities. The funds received and paid and any balances held are disclosed in note 28. 
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2 Critical accounting estimates and areas of judgement 

Accounting estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and 
other factors, including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the 
circumstances. 

Critical accounting estimates and assumptions 

The academy trust makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future. The resulting accounting 
estimates and assumptions will, by definition, seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates and 
assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets 
and liabilities within the next financial year are discussed below. 

The present value of the Local Government Pension Scheme defined benefit liability depends on a number of 
factors that are determined on an actuarial basis using a variety of assumptions. The assumptions used in 
determining the net cost or income for pensions include the discount rate. Any changes in these assumptions, 
which are disclosed in note 20, will impact the carrying amount of the pension liability. Furthermore, a roll 
forward approach which projects results from the latest full actuarial valuation performed at 31 March 2019 
has been used by the actuary in valuing the pensions liability at 31 August 2022. Any differences between the 
figures derived from the roll forward approach and a full actuarial valuation would impact on the carrying 
amount of the pension liability. 

Critical areas of judgement 
The academy trust participates in the Teacher’s Pension Scheme (TPS) for qualifying employees. Under the 
definitions set out in FRS 102, this is a multi-employer pension scheme. There is insufficient information about 
the plan assets and liabilities to be able to reliably account for its share of the defined benefit obligation and 
plan assets in the financial statements and therefore the plan is accounted for as a defined contribution 
scheme (see note 20). 

3 Donations and capital grants 

Unrestricted Restricted Total Total 

funds funds 2022 2021 

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 

Private sponsorship - - - 2 

Donated fixed assets - - - 2,730 

Capital grants - 691 691 309 

Other donations - 10 10 20 69 

10 701 711 3,110 
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4 Funding for the academy trust's charitable activities 

DfE/ESFA grants 

General annual grant (GAG) 

Other DfE/ESFA grants: 

- UIFSM 

- Pupil premium 

- Others 

Other government grants 

Local authority grants 

Special educational projects 

COVID-19 additional funding 

DfE/ESFA 

Other DfE/ESFA COVID-19 funding 

Non-DfE/ESFA 

Other COVID-19 funding 

Other incoming resources 

Total funding 

Unrestricted 

funds 

£'000 

  

69 Oo 

    

69 oO
) | 

Restricted 

funds 

£'000 

14,051 

  

    

  

    

  

  

    

16,344 
  

Total 

2022 

£'000 

14,051 

236 

635 

457 
  

15,379 
  

  

735 

=
 

  

736 
  

  

  

181 
  

74 &
 

  

  

17,040 
  

Total 

2021 

£'000 

    

  

  

399 | 
60 oa

 

    

16,145 
    

Other DfE/ESFA grants include Teachers’ Pay Grant £23k (2020/21: £169k), Sports Grant £125k (2020/21: 
£125k), and Rates Relief £54k (2020/21: £52k). 

Local authority grants include Teachers’ Pension Grant £42k (2020/21: £483k), SEN funding £350k (2020/21: 

£295k), Early Years funding £194k (2020/21: £239k), and IYFA £3k (2020/21: £3k). 

Other incoming resources include: Catering income £371k (2020/21: £257k), Trips and activities income 
£195k (2020/21: £179k), Insurance claim £nil (2020/21: £69k) and other self-generated income of £130k 
(2020/21: £102k). 

Other trading activities 

Hire of facilities 

Unrestricted 

funds 

£'000 

36 
    

Restricted 

funds 

£'000 

Total 

2022 

£'000 

  

  

Total 

2021 

£'000 
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6 Investment income 

Short term deposits 

Expenditure 

Academy's educational operations 

- Direct costs 

- Allocated support costs 

Staff costs 

£'000 

12,006 

2,517 
  

14,523 
    

Unrestricted 

funds 

£'000 

1 

    

Restricted 

funds 

£'000 

Non-pay expenditure 

Premises 

£'000 

2,579 
  

2,579 
    

Net income/(expenditure) for the year includes: 

Fees payable to auditor for: 

- Audit 

- Other services 

Operating lease rentals 

Depreciation of tangible fixed assets 

Amortisation of intangible fixed assets 

Net interest on defined benefit pension liability 

Central services 

The academy trust has provided the following central services to its academies during the year: 

central HR support; 

o
e
e
 

ee
 
©
 
©
 
©
 
@
 school improvement support; 

central finance team; 

central facilities management staff support; 

central ICT staff support; 
central governance support; 
central administration costs; and 

primary school staff absence pool 

Other 

£'000 

194 

1,703 
  

2,497 
    

The academy trust charges for these services on the following basis: 

Total 

2022 

£'000 

=
 

    

Total 

2022 

£'000 

12,800 

6,799 
  

19,599 
    

2022 

£'000 

    

Total 

2021 

£'000 

=
 

    

Total 

2021 

£'000 

12,029 

6,018 
  

18,047 
    

2021 

£°000 

14 
11 

1,586 

13 

    

Central costs are shared out amongst the Trust's schools based on Average Weighted Pupil Unit (AWPU) 
funding allocated to each school by the ESFA. AWPU is based on the number of pupils in school, further 

specific costs are allocated based on usage (e.g. caretaker costs shared by three schools and IT costs shared 
on numbers of devices. 
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8 Central services 

The amounts charged during the year were as follows: 

Buckland C of E Primary School 

Faringdon Community College 

Faringdon Junior School (now the Elms Primary) 

Faringdon Infant School (now Folly View Primary) 

John Blandy Primary School 

Longcot and Fernham C of E Primary School 

Shrivenham C of E Controlled School 

Watchfield Primary School 

9 Charitable activities 

Unrestricted Restricted 

  

funds 

£'000 

Direct costs 

Educational operations 739 

Support costs 

Educational operations - 

739 
    

funds 

£'000 

12,061 

6,799 
  

18,860 
    

2022 

£'000 

47 

491 

127 

82 

82 

59 

125 
  

1,082 
    

Total 

2022 

£'000 

12,800 

6,799 
  

19,599 
    

(Continued) 

2021 

£°000 

  

    

Total 

2021 

£'000 

12,029 

6,018 
  

18,047 
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9 Charitable activities 

Analysis of costs 

Support costs 

Support staff costs 

Depreciation and amortisation 

Technology costs 

Maintenance of premises and equipment 

Cleaning 

Energy costs 

Rent, rates and other occupancy costs 

Security and transport 

Catering 

Finance costs 

Other support costs 

Governance costs 

10 Staff 

Staff costs 

Staff costs during the year were: 

Wages and salaries 

Social security costs 

Pension costs 

Staff costs - employees 

Agency staff costs 

Staff restructuring costs 

Staff development and other staff costs 

Total staff expenditure 

Staff restructuring costs comprise: 

Redundancy payments 

Severance payments 

2022 

£'000 

9,952 

896 

3,304 
  

14,152 

341 

30 
  

14,523 

  

14,574 
    

15 

15 
  

(Continued) 

2021 

£'000 

2,158 

1,599 

255 

325 

328 

172 

103 

23 

558 

127 

341 

29 
  

6,018 
    

2021 

£°000 

9,548 

853 

2,900 
  

13,301 

209 

  

13,510 

  

13,551 
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10 Staff (Continued) 

Severance payments 

The academy trust paid 1 severance payment in the year, disclosed in the following bands: 

0 - £25,000 1 

Staff numbers 

The average number of persons employed by the academy trust during the year was as follows: 

2022 2021 

Number Number 

Teachers 181 161 

Administration and support 237 238 

Management 24 23 

442 422 

The number of persons employed, expressed as a full time equivalent, was as follows: 

2022 2021 

Number Number 

Teachers 138 134 

Administration and support 142 142 

Management 22 20 

302 296 

Higher paid staff 

The number of employees whose employee benefits (excluding employer pension costs and employer 
national insurance contributions) exceeded £60,000 was: 

2022 2021 
Number Number 

~ £60,001 - £70,000 ~ 6 6 
£70,001 - £80,000 ~ 1 1 
£90,001 - £100,000 4 1 

£100,001 - £110,000 1 1 

Key management personnel 

The key management personnel of the academy trust comprise the trustees and the senior management 
team as listed on page 1. The total amount of key management personnel employee benefits (including 

employer pension contributions and employer national insurance contributions) received by key management 
personnel for their services to the academy trust was £327k (2021: £324k). 
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11 

12 

13 

Trustees’ remuneration and expenses 

One or more of the trustees has been paid remuneration or has received other benefits from an employment 
with the academy trust. The CEO and other staff trustees only receive remuneration in respect of services 
they provide undertaking the roles of CEO and staff members under their contracts of employment, and not in 
respect of their services as trustees. 

The value of trustees' remuneration and other benefits was as follows: 

D Millard(CEO and trustee): 

e Remuneration £105,000 - £110,000 (2021: £100,000 - £105,000) 
e Employer's pension contributions £25,000 - £30,000 (2021: £25,000 - £30,000) 

No trustees received reimbursement or direct payment of any expenses during 2022 or 2021. 

Other related party transactions involving the trustees are set out within the related parties note. 

Trustees’ and officers’ insurance 

In accordance with normal commercial practice, the academy trust has purchased insurance to protect 
trustees and officers from claims arising from negligent acts, errors or omissions occurring whilst on academy 
trust business. The insurance provides cover up to £5m on any one claim. 

The cost of this insurance is included in the total insurance cost but has not been separately identified. 

Intangible fixed assets 

Computer 
software 

£'000 

Cost 

At 1 September 2021 and at 31 August 2022 107 

Amortisation 

At 1 September 2021 18 

Charge for year 14 

At 31 August 2022 32 

Carrying amount ° 

At 31 August 2022 75 

At 31 August 2021 89 
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14 

15 

Tangible fixed assets 

  

    

    

    

        

Leasehold Computer Furniture Total 
buildings equipment and 

equipment 

£°000 £°000 £'000 £'000 

Cost 

At 1 September 2021 35,149 870 637 36,656 

Additions 167 51 - 218 

At 31 August 2022 35,316 921 637 36,874 

Depreciation 

At 1 September 2021 10,780 708 446 11,934 

Charge for the year 1,372 84 89 1,545 

At 31 August 2022 12,152 792 535 13,479 

Net book value 

At 31 August 2022 23,164 129 102 23,395 

At 31 August 2021 24,369 162 191 24,722 
        

Leasehold land and buildings 
The Academy took out 125 year leases over the land and buildings at the date of conversion of each school. 
In determining valuations for the leasehold property, the Trustees have referred to the valuations arranged by 
the EFA which were carried out on a desktop depreciated replacement cost basis. The freehold of these land 
and buildings is owned by the respective Local Authorities. These are recognised in the accounts as the 
academy trust has the right to use the property. 

Additions to land and buildings 
Additions in the year represent capital works to existing buildings. 

    

Debtors 

2022 2021 

£°000 £'000 

Trade debtors = 7 47 

VAT recoverable - 197 160 

Prepayments and accrued income 421 530 

625 737 
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16 Creditors: amounts falling due within one year 

Trade creditors 

Other taxation and social security 

Other creditors 

Accruals and deferred income 

17 Deferred income 

Deferred income is included within: 

Creditors due within one year 

Deferred income at 1 September 2021 

Released from previous years 

Resources deferred in the year 

Deferred income at 31 August 2022 

2022 

£°000 

442 
217 
256 
802 

1,717 

2022 

£'000 

2021 

£'000 

At the balance sheet date the academy trust was holding funding received specifically for the next financial 
year totalling £356k, together with lettings, trips, activities and other income received in advance totalling 
£201k. 
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18 Funds 

Restricted general funds 

General Annual Grant (GAG) 

UIFSM 

Pupil premium 

Other DfE/ESFA COVID-19 
funding 

Other Coronavirus funding 

Other DfE/ESFA grants 

Other government grants 

Other restricted funds 

Pension reserve 

Restricted fixed asset funds 

DfE group capital grants 

Fixed assets fund 

Private sector capital 
sponsorship 

Total restricted funds 

Unrestricted funds 

General funds 

Total funds 

= 

Balance at 

1 September 

2021 

£°000 

1,020 

(9,707) 
  

(8,650) 
    

80 

24,811 

24,891 
    

16,241 
    

84 o
 

    

17,087 
    

Income 

£'000 

14,051 

236 

635 

96 

85 

457 

101 

683 

  

16,344 
    

691 

10 
  

701 
    

17,045 
    

74 ©
 

    

17,788 
    

Expenditure 

£°000 

(13,821) 
(236) 
(635) 

(96) 
(85) 

(480) 
(6) 

(637) 
(1,305) 
  

(17,301) 
    

(1,559) 

  

(1,559) 
    

(18,860) 
    

    

    

Gains, 

losses and 

transfers 

£°000 

(32) 

8,597 
  

8,565 
    

(178) 

(8) 

32 
  

8,597 
    

©
 

oa
 

o
 
N
 

' 

    

Balance at 

31 August 

2022 

£'000 

1,218 

  

    

  

    

    

    

23,873 
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18 Funds (Continued) 

The specific purposes for which the funds are to be applied are as follows: 

The General Annual Grant represents funding received from the Education and Skills Funding Agency during 
the period in order to fund the continuing activities of the school. Under the funding agreement with the 
Secretary of State, the academy trust was not subject to limits on the amount of GAG that it could carry 
forward at 31 August 2021. 

Pupil Premium Funding represents funding received from the Department for Education (DfE) to raise the 
attainment of disadvantaged pupils of all abilities. The eligibility of the pupils and rates of grant per pupil are 
set-out by the DfE. This funding is to be used for the provision of education. 

Early Years Funding is provided by a local authority to facilitate provision of placements for 3 and 4 year olds. 

Other ESFA funding represents other forms of funding received from the Department for Education. 

Local Authority Revenue funding represents various grant funding provided by Local Authorities. 

Restricted general funds, Other grants represent amounts given to the academy trust for specific revenue 
purposes. 

The pension reserve fund separately identifies the pension deficit on the Local Government Pension Scheme, 
and through which all the movements on the pension scheme are recognised. 

Devolved Formula Capital represents funding provided by the Department for Education to be used for capital 
projects. This funding may be used for specific capital projects which are not considered to be fixed asset 
additions. 

Local Authority Capital Funding includes various grant funding provided by Local Authorities. 

Capital funds transferred on conversion constitute balances remaining on funds held by the academy trust for 
capital purposes from the point of conversion. 

The Condition Improvement Fund represents funding provided by the Department for Education to be used for 
specific capital projects. 

_.. Restricted Fixed Asset Funds, Other grants and donations represent amounts given to the academy trust for 
specific capital purposes. ‘ 

The Intangible Asset fund recognises the net book value of computer software additions purchased by the 
academy trust since conversion. 

The Fixed Asset fund recognises the net book value of tangible and fixed assets transferred to the trust on 
conversion and additions since conversion. 

Unrestricted funds represent other income to the academy trust which is not received as funding or with a 
specific purpose. 

John Blandy Primary School has been in a deficit position for the last few years and this has been managed 
and overseen by the Trust Resources Committee. 

The position occurred because the school fell into "requires improvement" OFSTED rating prior to joining the 
Trust and subsequent restructuring activity created a deficit position. This has gradually been reducing until 
AY18/19 when the pressure of unfunded pay rises started to make an impact. The school is starting to grow 
from a 1FE to a 1.5FE and will therefore start to see a reduction in its deficit. 
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18 Funds 

Comparative information in respect of the preceding period is as follows: 

  

    

  

    

  

    

Balance at 

1 September 

2020 

£°000 

Restricted general funds 

General Annual Grant (GAG) 721 

UIFSM - 

Pupil premium - 

Other DfE/ESFA COVID-19 
funding - 

Other Coronavirus funding - 

Other DfE/ESFA grants - 

Other government grants 15 

Other restricted funds 9 

Pension reserve (7,065) 

(6,320) 

Restricted fixed asset funds 

DfE group capital grants 822 

Fixed assets fund 22,216 

Private sector capital 
sponsorship - 

23,038 

Total restricted funds 16,718 

Unrestricted funds 

General funds 845 

Total funds 17,563 
    

Income 

£'000 

12,904 
244 
603 

223 

176 

352 

1,038 

2 

  

15,542 
    

  

    

65 NO
 

    

19,279 
    

Expenditure 

£°000 

(12,238) 
(244) 
(603) 

(223) 
(176) 
(329) 

(1,048) 
(2) 

(934) 
  

(15,797) 
    

(1,599) 

  

(1,599) 
    

(17,396) 
    

(651) 
    

(18°047) 
    

Gains, 

losses and 

transfers 

£'000 

(367) 

(1,708) 
  

(2,075) 
    

  

    

    

. 

(1,708) 
    

(Continued) 

Balance at 

31 August 

2021 

£'000 

1,020 

(9,707) 
  

(8,650) 
    

80 

24,811 

  

24,891 
    

16,241 
    

84 Oo 

    

17,087 
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18 Funds 

Total funds analysis by academy 

Fund balances at 31 August 2022 were allocated as follows: 

Buckland C of E Primary School 

Faringdon Community College 

Faringdon Junior School (now the Elms Primary) 

Faringdon Infant School (now Folly View Primary) 

John Blandy Primary School 

Longcot and Fernham C of E Primary School 

Shrivenham C of E Controlled School 

Watchfield Primary School 

Central services 

Total before fixed assets fund and pension reserve 

Restricted fixed asset fund 

Pension reserve 

Total funds 

2022 

£°000 

130 

884 

322 

295 

194 
(46) 
241 
198 
  

2,223 

24,065 
(2,415) 
  

23,873 
    

(Continued) 

2021 

£'000 

184 

772 

190 

302 

(77) 
152 

19 

216 

145 
  

1,903 

24,891 
(9,707) 
  

17,087 
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18 Funds (Continued) 

Total cost analysis by academy 

Expenditure incurred by each academy during the year was as follows: 

Teaching and Other costs 

educational Other support Educational excluding Total Total 

support staff staff costs supplies depreciation 2022 2021 

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 

Buckland C of E Primary 
School 410 88 43 82 623 549 

Faringdon Community 
College 5,586 432 512 997 7,527 6,934 

Faringdon Junior School 
(now the Elms Primary) 1,201 48 95 220 1,564 1,573 

Faringdon Infant School 
(now Folly View Primary) 947 79 49 193 1,268 1,212 

John Blandy Primary 
School 845 39 42 178 1,104 981 

Longcot and Fernham C of 
E Primary School 472 50 33 101 656 617 

Shrivenham C of E 
Controlled School 797 42 65 110 1,014 887 

Watchfield Primary School 1,387 125 61 261 1,834 1,730 

Central services 396 444 13 292 1,145 1,031 

12,041 1,347 913 2,434 16,735 15,514 

Depreciation and 

amortisation 1,559 1,599 

FRS 102 pension costs 1,305 934 

Total expenditure 19,599 18,047 

19 Analysis of net assets between funds ‘ 
é Unrestricted Restricted funds: Total 

Funds General Fixed asset Funds 

£'000 £°000 £°000 £°000 

Fund balances at 31 August 2022 are 
represented by: 

Intangible fixed assets - - 1D 75 

Tangible fixed assets - - 23,395 23,395 

Current assets 1,051 2,889 595 4,535 

Current liabilities (201) (1,516) - (1,717) 

Pension scheme liability ~ (2,415) - (2,415) 

Total net assets 850 (1,042) 24,065 23,873 
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19 

20 

Analysis of net assets between funds (Continued) 

Unrestricted Restricted funds: Total 

Funds General Fixed asset Funds 

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 

Fund balances at 31 August 2021 are 
represented by: 

      

Intangible fixed assets - - 89 89 

Tangible fixed assets - - 24,722 24,722 

Current assets 2,969 406 80 3,455 

Current liabilities (2,123) 651 - (1,472) 

Pension scheme liability - (9,707) - (9,707) 

Total net assets 846 (8,650) 24,891 17,087 
            

Pension and similar obligations 

The academy trust's employees belong to two principal pension schemes: the Teachers’ Pension Scheme 
England and Wales (TPS) for academic and related staff; and the Local Government Pension Scheme 
(LGPS) for non-teaching staff, which is managed by Oxfordshire County Council. Both are multi-employer 
defined benefit schemes. 

The latest actuarial valuation of the TPS related to the period ended 31 March 2016, and that of the LGPS 
related to the period ended 31 March 2019. 

Contributions amounting to £253k were payable to the schemes at 31 August 2022 (2021: £241k) and are 
included within creditors. 

Teachers’ Pension Scheme 

Introduction 

The Teachers' Pension Scheme (TPS) is a statutory, contributory, defined benefit scheme, governed by the 
Teachers’ Pension Scheme Regulations 2014. Membership is automatic for teachers in academy trusts. All 
teachers have the option to opt out of the TPS following enrolment. 

The TPS is an unfunded scheme to which both the member and employer makes contributions, as a 
percentage of salary. These contributions are credited to the Exchequer. Retirement and other pension 
bertefits are paid by public funds provided by Parliament. * 

Valuation of the Teachers’ Pension Scheme 

The Government Actuary, using normal actuarial principles, conducts a formal actuarial review of the TPS in 
accordance with the Public Service Pensions (Valuations and Employer Cost Cap) Directions 2014 published 
by HM Treasury every 4 years. The aim of the review is to specify the level of future contributions. Actuarial 
scheme valuations are dependent on assumptions about the value of future costs, design of benefits and 
many other factors. The latest actuarial valuation of the TPS was carried out as at 31 March 2016. The 
valuation report was published by the Department for Education on 5 March 2019. 
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20 ~+Pension and similar obligations (Continued) 

The key elements of the valuation and subsequent consultation are: 
e employer contribution rates set at 23.68% of pensionable pay (including a 0.08% employer 

administration charge) 
¢ total scheme liabilities (pensions currently in payment and the estimated cost of future benefits) for 

service to the effective date of £218,100 million, and notional assets (estimated future contributions 
together with the notional investments held at the valuation date) of £196,100 million giving a notional 
past service deficit of £22,000 million 

e the SCAPE rate, set by HMT, is used to determine the notional investment return. The current 
SCAPE rate is 2.4% above the rate of CPI. The assumed real rate of return is 2.4% in excess of 
prices and 2% in excess of earnings. The rate of real earnings growth is assumed to be 2.2%. The 
assumed nominal rate of return including earnings growth is 4.45%. 

The next valuation result is due to be implemented from 1 April 2024. 

The employer's pension costs paid to the TPS in the period amounted to £1,568k (2021: £1,503k). 

A copy of the valuation report and supporting documentation is on the Teachers’ Pensions website. 

Under the definitions set out in FRS 102, the TPS is an unfunded multi-employer pension scheme. The 
academy trust has accounted for its contributions to the scheme as if it were a defined contribution scheme. 
The academy trust has set out above the information available on the scheme. 

Local Government Pension Scheme 

The LGPS is a funded defined benefit pension scheme, with the assets held in separate trustee-administered 
funds. The total contributions are as noted below. The agreed contribution rates for future years are % for 
employers and % for employees. 

Parliament has agreed, at the request of the Secretary of State for Education, to a guarantee that, in the event 
of academy closure, outstanding Local Government Pension Scheme liabilities would be met by the 
Department for Education. The guarantee came into force on 18 July 2013. 

Total contributions made 2022 2021 

£°000 £'000 

Employer's Contributions ~ 558 592 
Employees’ contributions 151 161 

Total contributions 709 753 

Principal actuarial assumptions 2022 2021 

% % 

Rate of increase in salaries 3.05 2.90 

Rate of increase for pensions in payment/inflation 3.05 2.90 

Discount rate for scheme liabilities 4.25 1.65 

Commutation of pensions to lump sums 50.00 50.00 
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20 + Pension and similar obligations (Continued) 

The current mortality assumptions include sufficient allowance for future improvements in mortality rates. The 
assumed life expectations on retirement age 65 are: 

    

        

    

        

    

2022 2021 

Years Years 

Retiring today 

- Males 22.2 22.4 

- Females 24.5 24.7 

Retiring in 20 years 

- Males 23.1 23.4 

- Females 26.1 26.3 

Scheme liabilities would have been affected by changes in assumptions as follows: 

2022 2021 

£'°000 £'000 

Discount rate + 0.1% 11,000 18,000 

Discount rate - 0.1% 11,000 18,000 

Mortality assumption + 1 year 11,000 18,000 

Mortality assumption - 1 year 11,000 19,000 

CPI rate + 0.1% 11,000 18,000 

CPI rate - 0.1% 11,000 18,000 

Defined benefit pension scheme net liability 2022 2021 

£'000 £°000 

Scheme assets 8,892 8,662 

Scheme obligations (11,307) (18,369) 

Net liability (2,415) (9,707) 

The academy trust's share of the assets in the scheme _ 2022 2021 

i i Fair value Fair value 

£'000 £'000 

Equities 6,669 6,410 

Corporate bonds 1,334 1,473 

Property 800 606 

Other assets 89 173 

Total market value of assets 8,892 8,662 
        

The actual return on scheme assets was £(361) (2021: £1,344k). 
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20 Pension and similar obligations 

Amount recognised in the statement of financial activities 

Current service cost (net of employer contributions) 

Interest cost 

Total operating charge 

Changes in the present value of defined benefit obligations 

At 1 September 2021 

Current service cost 

Interest cost 

Employee contributions 

Actuarial (gain)/loss 

Benefits paid 

At 31 August 2022 

Changes in the fair value of the academy trust's share of scheme assets 

At 1 September 2021 

Interest income 

Actuarial loss/(gain) 

Employer contributions 

Employee contributions 

Benefits paid 

At 31 August 2022 

= 

2022 

£°000 

1,136 

169 
  

1,305 
    

2022 

£°000 

18,369 
1,694 
317 
151 

(9,106) 
(118) 
  

11,307 
  

2022 

£°000 

8,662 
148 

(509) 
558 
151 
(118) 
  

8,892 
    

(Continued) 

2021 

£'000 

  

934 
    

2021 

£'000 

13,735 
1,399 
246 
161 

2,933 
(105) 
  

18,369 
    

2021 

£°000 

6,670 
119 

1,225 
592 
161 

(105) 
  

8,662 
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21. ~+Reconciliation of net (expenditure)/income to net cash flow from operating activities 

Notes 

Net (expenditure)/income for the reporting period (as per the 
statement of financial activities) 

Adjusted for: 

Capital grants from DfE and other capital income 

Investment income receivable 6 

Defined benefit pension costs less contributions payable 20 

Defined benefit pension scheme finance cost 20 

Depreciation of tangible fixed assets 

Amortisation of intangible fixed assets 13 

Decrease in debtors 

Increase in creditors 

Net cash provided by operating activities 

22 ~ Analysis of changes in net funds 
1 September 

2021 

£'000 

Cash 2,718 

23 Contingent liabilities 

There are no contingent liabilities that require disclosure. 

24 Long-term commitments 

Operating leases 

2022 

£'000 

(1,811) 

(701) 

(1) 
1,136 

169 

1,545 

14 

112 

245 

708 

Cash flows 

£'000 

1,192 

2021 

£°000 

1,232 

31 August 

2022 

£°000 

3,910 

At 31 August 2022 the total of the academy trust's future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable 
operating leases was: 

ss 

Amounts due within one year 

Amounts due in two and five years 

2022 

£'000 

2021 

£°000 
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25 

26 

Capital commitments 

2022 2021 

£'000 £'000 

Expenditure contracted for but not provided in the accounts - 58 

The capital commitment of £57,543 in the year ended 31 August 2021 relates to CIF building work and 
Buckland School. 

Related party transactions 

Owing to the nature of the academy trust and the composition of the board of trustees being drawn from local 
public and private sector organisations, transactions may take place with organisations in which the trustees 
have an interest. The following related party transactions took place in the financial period. 

Expenditure Related Party Transactions 

E Millard (daughter of D Millard, Chief Executive Officer) received remuneration during the year, for her work 
as a teaching assistant, of £8,157 (2020/21: £4,239), expenses of £nil (2020/21: Enil) and employer pension 
contributions amounted to £Nil (2020/21: £896). The amount owed to E Millard at 31 August 2022 was £nil 
(2021: £nil). 

E Millard's appointment was made in open competition and D Millard was not involved in the decision-making 
process regarding appointment. E Millard is paid within the normal pay scale for her role and receives no 
special treatment as a result of her relationship to the Chief Executive Officer. 

A Millard (son of D Millard, Chief Executive Officer) received remuneration during the year, for his work as a 
marketing assistant, of £705 (2020/21: £2,957), expenses of £nil (2020/21: £nil) and employer pension 
contributions amounted to £Nil (2020/21: £627). The amount owed to A Millard at 31 August 2022 was £nil 

(2021: £nil). 

A Millard's appointment was made in open competition and D Millard was not involved in the decision-making 
process regarding appointment. A Millard is paid within the normal pay scale for his role and receives no 

special treatment as a result of his relationship to the Chief Executive Officer. 

V Greenwood (wife of M Greenwood, Trustee) received remuneration during the year, for her work as a 
teacher, of £41,605 (2020/21: £NIL), expenses of £nil (2020/21: £nil) and employer pension contributions 
amounted to £9,852 (2020/21: £NIL). The amount owed to V Greenwood at 31 August 2022 was £nil (2021: 
Enil). 

V Greenwood's appointment was made in open competition and M Greenwood was not involved in the 
decision-making process regarding appointment. V Greenwood is paid within the normal pay scale for her role 
and receives no special treatment as a result of his relationship to the Trustee. 

M Lynn (daughter of A Lynn, Chief Operational Officer) received no remuneration during the year as her 
employment ceased at 31 August 2021. For the prior year she received remuneration for her work as a 

teaching assistant of £12,251, expenses of £nil and employer pension contributions amounted of £nil. No 
amounts were owed to M Lynn at 31 August 2022 or 2021. 

M Lynn's appointment was made in open competition and A Lynn was not involved in the decision-making 
process regarding appointment. M Lynn is paid within the normal pay scale for her role and receives no 
special treatment as a result of her relationship to the Chief Operational Officer. 
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27 

28 

Members' liability 

Each member of the charitable company undertakes to contribute to the assets of the company in the event of 
it being wound up while he or she is a member, or within one year after he or she ceases to be a member, 
such amount as may be required, not exceeding £10 for the debts and liabilities contracted before he or she 
ceases to be a member. 

Agency arrangements 

The academy trust distributes 16-19 bursary funds to students as an agent for ESFA. In the accounting year 
ending 31 August 2022 the trust received £4k (2020/21: £6k) and disbursed £8k (2020/21: £11k) from the 
fund. An amount of £2k (2021: £6k) (including brought forward from prior years) is included in other creditors 
relating to undistributed funds that are repayable to ESFA. 
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